




















































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Utilities Report for Department Activities         
May 2025 

 4 

 

 

Sanitary Survey with Division of Drinking Water (DDW) 

Every site was thoroughly inspected with the State Water Resources Control District #06 Engineer 
to review the water systems, including tanks, distribution system booster stations, and other 
treatment facilities. A sanitary survey is a comprehensive evaluation of a public water system, 
ensuring it provides safe and clean drinking water.  This survey examines key components of the 
system, such as the water source, treatment processes, storage facilities, distribution systems, and 
overall operations. It also verifies that the system complies with state and federal drinking water 
regulations. Sanitary surveys are conducted every three years to identify areas for improvement, 
maintain system integrity, and ensure regulatory compliance. 

https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/drinking_water/programs/ 

https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/drinking_water/programs/documents/ddwem/DDWdistrictoffices
map.pdf 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 9: Inspection of Leimert Water Tank 

Water Department Report (Continued) 

 

 

Water Department Report (Continued) 

 

 

8D

331

https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/drinking_water/programs/
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/drinking_water/programs/documents/ddwem/DDWdistrictofficesmap.pdf
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/drinking_water/programs/documents/ddwem/DDWdistrictofficesmap.pdf


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Utilities Report for Department Activities         
May 2025 

 5 

Figure 10: Sound detection device in use on Croyden Lane 

 

 

Leak on 400 block Croyden Lane 

Sound detection was used to locate a leak on Croyden Lane. Once the leak was located, the street 
was excavated to reveal it and repair it. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Figure 11: Croyden leak after detection and 
excavation 

Water Department Report (Continued) 

 

 

8D

332



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Utilities Report for Department Activities         
May 2025 

 6 

 

 

Leak detected and repaired on 700 block of Main Street. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 12: Start of excavation on Main Street to repair leak 

Water Department Report (Continued) 

 

 

8D

333



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Utilities Report for Department Activities         
May 2025 

 7 

 

 

 

Angle stop replacement. There was a leak on the HDPE portion of the service line right before the 
angle stop from a tight bend in the service line. The meter box was in the customer's paver 
driveway. The department staff pulled the meter body, used the vac trailer to create a workable area 
below the box, made custom brass fittings, and reinstalled the meter. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Water Department Report (Continued) 

 

 

Figure 13: Replacement angle stop 

8D

334



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Utilities Report for Department Activities         
May 2025 

 8 

Figure 15: Old fencing at Leimert location before replacement 

Figure 14: Old fencing at Leimert location before 
replacement 

Figure 17: New fencing after replacement Figure 16: New fencing after replacement 

 

 

Leimert Perimeter Fence Replacement   

Leimert Fence repair by District Contractor, Big Wakoo. They offered the most affordable solution 
for replacing the damaged fencing at the water tank site. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Water Department Report (Continued) 

 

 

8D

335



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Utilities Report for Department Activities         
May 2025 

 9 

 

 

AMI Leak Detection 

Two houses on Benson were flagged through our AMI system, using 38 gph and 21 gph, respectively. 
The 38 gph leak was from a water softener issue running to waste without the homeowner's 
knowledge. The 21 gph leak was from a broken water line where the customer-side service line 
connected to the meter. In both cases, the leaks were discovered before the customers noticed.   

 

Hydrant Maintenance 

Working collaboratively with the Fire Department, 2 Hydrants were changed out. The Fire 
Department notified the Water Department of hydrants of concern. Water staff replaced the 
hydrants with new ones, taking the old ones back to the shop for rebuilding. One hydrant was noted 
as below grade and was raised by installing a new spool. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 18: Hydrant before replacement and 
raising 

Figure 19: New hydrant with repositioning 

Water Department Report (Continued) 

 

 

8D

336



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Utilities Report for Department Activities         
May 2025 

 10 

 

 

Concerned about a particular hydrant? Please let us know at: 
 

https://www.cambriacsd.org/report-a-fire-hydrant-issue 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

Water Department Report (Continued) 

 

 

Water Department Report (Continued) 

 

 

Water Department Report (Continued) 

 

 

Water Department Report (Continued) 

 

 

Water Department Report (Continued) 

 

 

Water Department Report (Continued) 

 

 

Water Department Report (Continued) 

 

 

Water Department Report (Continued) 

 

 

Water Department Report (Continued) 

 

 

Water Department Report (Continued) 

 

 

Water Department Report (Continued) 

 

 

Water Department Report (Continued) 

 

 

8D

337

https://www.cambriacsd.org/report-a-fire-hydrant-issue


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Utilities Report for Department Activities         
May 2025 

 11 

 

 
 
Note: The status of current CCSD projects can also be found on the CCSD website via the following 
link.  https://www.cambriacsd.org/district-project-updates 
 
Project:  
Adaptive Management Plan (AMP) 
Description:  
The AMP is a surface water, groundwater, and biological monitoring program designed to detect 
potential impacts on sensitive biological resources, requiring groundwater modeling and 
monitoring while the WRF is in operation. 
Current Status Update: 
The 2017 AMP is available on the District website.   
www.cambriacsd.org/files/f15b73f09/01_cambria-swf-amp_july-2017.pdf 
 
AMP monitoring is ongoing. Per methods described in the AMP, quarterly surveys are conducted at 
eight (8) survey sites to collect data and to describe survey conditions, habitats, stream flows, 
surface water quality, 9P7 soil moisture, and observed species. 
 
The AMP monitoring reports can be located on the CCSD website at 
 www.cambriacsd.org/amp-annual-reports-amp-monitoring-reports 
 
The final round of protocol-level surveys for California Red-Legged Frogs (CRLF) has been 
completed. Eleven CRLF were found during the second night of surveying, and 60 eggs were found 
in an egg mass during the daytime survey. 
 
Project:  
San Simeon Well Field (SSWF) Transmission Main Project 
Description:  
Developing a permanent repair of the San Simeon Water Main. This project will also include 
solutions for the parallel Sewer Effluent Main.    
Current Status Update: 
The project is currently in the design phase. The District's consultant, Cannon, is working on the 
plans, which are between 30% and 50% complete. 

In November, the consultant applied for a Caltrans Encroachment Permit. However, on January 13, 
2025, the Caltrans District 05 Encroachment Permits Office issued a letter indicating that the 
application was incomplete. The district’s consultant is working with Caltrans to finalize all permits. 
In the meantime, CCSD is working with State Parks and SWCA to establish an access and staging 
plan. 

 

 

Project Status Summaries 
(Purple text indicates new information) 

 

 

8D

338

https://www.cambriacsd.org/district-project-updates
http://www.cambriacsd.org/files/f15b73f09/01_cambria-swf-amp_july-2017.pdf
http://www.cambriacsd.org/amp-annual-reports-amp-monitoring-reports


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Utilities Report for Department Activities         
May 2025 

 12 

 

 

San Simeon Well Field (SSWF) Transmission Main Project (Continued) 

While Caltrans permitting and the design of the 65% plan set are ongoing, permitting with other 
State Agencies has also begun. A determination under the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) is required, and an Initial Study Mitigated Negative Declaration (ISMND) is also being 
prepared for submission. 

The permitting processes for CDFW and CEQA will be conducted concurrently while the Caltrans 
permit is finalized. Potholing for utilities and soil analysis will be performed once an encroachment 
permit has been issued. 
 
All environmental surveys have been completed, except for the historical and cultural surveys, 
which are not seasonally dependent. 

State Parks staff are currently reviewing the preliminary proposed layout for the pipeline through 
State Parks property. 

Due to permitting timeline and the need for additional funding, the expected construction schedule 
is anticipated to begin in the Summer of 2026. 
 
Project: Water Meter Replacement Project – AMI 
Description: This project will upgrade the CCSD metering system to an Advanced Metering 
Infrastructure (AMI) with new meters that provide real-time water analytics.   
Current Status Update: 
Progress is ongoing 
At the time of reporting, this project is over 80% complete and 2 months ahead of the initially 
proposed schedule.  
 
Project: Cambria Skatepark Project 
Description: Design and construct a new skatepark facility at the old skatepark location on Main St 
across from the Vets Hall.   
Current Status Update: 
This project is ongoing. The Building Permit process is nearing completion. Our civil engineering 
consultant has addressed recent requests from County Planning & Building.  
 
Project: East Ranch Restroom Project 
Description: Design and construct a new restroom facility at the Cambria Community Park.   
Current Status Update: 
The power poles for running the power across Rodeo Grounds Drive have been installed, the 
transformer in the utility chase in the restroom building has been installed, and the final electrical 
work has been completed. The building is ready for its final inspection from SLO County. 
 
 

Project Status Summaries (Continued) 
(Purple text indicates new information) 

 

 

8D

339



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Utilities Report for Department Activities         
May 2025 

 13 

 
 
 
 
Project: Pilot project for Zero Liquid Discharge for Brine in WRF 
Description: Pilot study project to test innovative technology for brine reduction with the goal of 
zero liquid discharge 
Current Status Update: 
The updated Wastewater Permit has incorporated future ZLD pilot operations or full-time 
operations. ZLD pilot operations have been postponed until the Fall of 2025. 
 
 
Project: Stuart Street Tank Project 
Description: Critical water infrastructure project to rebuild the Stuart Street tanks, which have 
reached their useful operational life   
Current Status Update: 
The final Coastal Development Permit (CDP), C-DRC2024-00038, was approved and received. Final 
permits have been submitted to SLO County Planning & Building to approve the relocation of the 
retaining wall. Plans were submitted 4/18/2025 and are under review. Processing time for the 
permit application is expected to be 42 days. Utilities staff have been researching landscape 
options to provide better aesthetics around the site once the tank construction is complete. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Project Status Summaries (Continued) 
(Purple text indicates new information) 

 

 

Project Status Summaries (Continued) 
(Purple text indicates new information) 

 

 

Project Status Summaries (Continued) 
(Purple text indicates new information) 

 

 

8D

340



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Utilities Report for Department Activities         
May 2025 

 14 

REGULATORY COMPLIANCE REPORTING 
State of California regulatory reporting requirements for Water and Wastewater 

 
Water Department (Monthly/Quarterly Reporting) 

• SAFER Drought & Conservation Data Collection monthly and quarterly report 

• Title 22 monthly, quarterly, and annual monitoring report to the State Water Resources 
Control Board 

• Disinfection By-Products Analysis Qtr. 3 

• DDW: Surface Water Treatment Regulation (SWTR) for Santa Rosa Well 3 and Well 4; 

 
San Simeon Wells 1-3 Testing/Reporting 
Ground Water Regulation (GWR) for San Simeon Wells 1-3 (Monthly) 
Total Coliform Regulation Reporting (Monthly) 
Bacterio-logical distribution system reporting (Monthly)  
Disinfection by-products (DBP) reporting (Quarterly) 
 
Additional Water Department Reporting (Annually/Semi-Annual) 

• Haz Mat Business Plan (Completed January 2024) 

• Discharge Monitoring Report (Completed January 2024) 

• Consumer Confidence Report (CCR) submittal to DDW and release to the public 

• Annual Volumetric Discharge Report  

• Annual Water Shortage Assessment (start April/due July 1) 

• CCR final data posting by July 1 

• Annual Stormwater Report (July 15) 

• California Lead and Copper Rule inventory and report (Completed October 2024) 

• Advanced Clean Fleets Report 

Wastewater Department Reporting 

Monthly/Quarterly 

• CIWQS Spill Report Requirement 

• RWQCB Report (Feb/Aug) 

 
 

 

8D

341



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Utilities Report for Department Activities         
May 2025 

 15 

 

 

Annually/Semi-Annually 

• Volumetric Annual Report (Jan) 

• CERS (Feb) – California Environmental Reporting System 

o https://cers.calepa.ca.gov/  

• APCD Generator Report (Mar) – SLO County Air Pollution Control District 

o https://www.slocleanair.org/  

• Biosolids Report (Apr/Oct) 

• CIWQS (Apr) – California Integrated Water Quality System Project 

o https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/ciwqs/  

• RWQCB Report (semi-annual May/Nov; annual Jan) 

o Regional Water Quality Control Board 

o https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/centralcoast/  

• SMARTS Stormwater (Jul/Dec) 

o California Water Boards 

o https://smarts.waterboards.ca.gov/smarts/  

• CUPA HazMat Plan Update – (Certified Unified Program Agency) 

 San Luis Obispo Department of Environmental Health Services 

 https://www.slocounty.ca.gov/departments/health-agency/public-
health/environmental-health-services/cupa-program-(hazardous-materials-
and-waste)  

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

REGULATORY COMPLIANCE REPORTING (Continued) 
 

8D

342

https://cers.calepa.ca.gov/
https://www.slocleanair.org/
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/ciwqs/
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/centralcoast/
https://smarts.waterboards.ca.gov/smarts/
https://www.slocounty.ca.gov/departments/health-agency/public-health/environmental-health-services/cupa-program-(hazardous-materials-and-waste)
https://www.slocounty.ca.gov/departments/health-agency/public-health/environmental-health-services/cupa-program-(hazardous-materials-and-waste)
https://www.slocounty.ca.gov/departments/health-agency/public-health/environmental-health-services/cupa-program-(hazardous-materials-and-waste)


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Utilities Report for Department Activities         
May 2025 

 16 

 
Water Resources, Conservation, & Permits Report 

 
Water Supply Status Summary 
 
As of May 28: 

Source Acre-feet 
(YTD) 

Annual 
Allocation 

Percentage of 
Allocation Diverted 

(YTD) 

Dry-Season 
Allocation 

Percentage of Dry-
Season Allocation 

Diverted 

San Simeon 162.85 799 20.4% 370 0% 

Santa Rosa 28.51 218 13.1% 155.3 16.6% 

 
Additional well-level data and production summary reports are available on the website at 
www.cambriacsd.org/water-data 
 
Santa Rosa Basin 

As of May 28, 2025, we have diverted 28.51 acre-feet, or 13.1%, of our 218 acre-feet per year (AFY) 
allocation. The dry season began in the Santa Rosa Groundwater Basin on May 1st, beginning our 
shift to pull water from the Santa Rosa Groundwater Basin to preserve water in the San Simeon 
Groundwater Basin. 

San Simeon Basin 

As of May 28, 2025, we have diverted 162.85 acre-feet, or 20.4%, of our 799 AFY allocation. 
 
Water Supply & Demand 
 
Please see the Potable Water Shortage Assessment table for details on anticipated water demand, 
actual demand, water supply adjustment, total water supply for May, expected effects of the Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan (WSCP) response actions, and the anticipated surplus for the July 2024-
June 2025 water shortage reporting timeframe. 
 
For additional information, see the charts, graphs, and May diversion sheet at the end of this report. 

The 2025-2026 Annual Water Supply and Demand Assessment was completed, reviewed by the 
Resources and Infrastructure Committee, and forwarded to the Board for final consideration and 
approval. 

 
  

8D

343

http://www.cambriacsd.org/water-data


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Utilities Report for Department Activities         
May 2025 

 17 

 

 
Permit Counter Monthly Summary (YTD Counts as of 05/28/2025) 
(Please note that not all applications for the month may be present at the time of report submission) 
 
ASSIGNMENT OF POSITION APPLICATIONS - 13 YTD (TOTAL FOR 2024 WAS 20) 
 
RETROFIT APPLICATIONS - 14 YTD (TOTAL FOR 2024 WAS 33) 
 
TRANSFER OF POSITION/EDU APPLICATIONS - 1 YTD (TOTAL FOR 2024 WAS 3) 
 
VOLUNTARY LOT MERGER APPLICATIONS (ELIGIBILITY) - 6 YTD (TOTAL FOR 2024 WAS 16) 
023.371.005 / 023.971.018 – Eligible for VLM Program 
 
VACATION RENTAL CONDITIONAL APPROVAL APPLICATIONS - 6 YTD (Total for 2024 was 22) 
 
VACATION RENTAL FINAL APPROVAL - 2 YTD (TOTAL FOR 2024 WAS 7) 
022.353.009 - 1086 Hillcrest Dr 
 
WATER SERVICE INSTALLATION OR UPGRADE APPLICATIONS - 2 YTD (Total for 2024 was 4) 
 
INTENT-TO-SERVES ISSUED - 0 YTD 
 
WAITLIST WITHDRAWALS - 0 YTD 
 
WILL SERVE APPLICATIONS (INCLUDING FIRE PLAN / SPRINKLER REVIEWS) - 14 YTD (TOTAL FOR 2024 WAS 59) 
013.261.025 – 2086 Main St – Siding and Roof Replacement 
022.241.029 - 511 Dorset St – Remodel Kitchen & Laundry Room, Replace windows and roof 
 
WATER USE EFFICIENCY WALK-THROUGHS COMPLETED - 0 YTD (TOTAL FOR 2024 WAS 0) 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

8D

344



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Utilities Report for Department Activities         
May 2025 

 18 

 
 
 
AMI - Advanced Metering Infrastructure 
 
AMP - Adaptive Management Plan (Re. Emergency Water Supply Project) 
 
APCD -  “SLO County” Air Pollution Control District 

• https://www.slocleanair.org/ 
 
AQMD - "South Coast" Air Quality Management District 
(As opposed to the Bay Area AQMD, aka BAAQMD) 
 
CCR - Consumer Confidence Report 
 
CDP - Coastal Development Permit 
 
CEQA - California Environmental Quality Act  

• https://ceqaportal.org/  
 
CUPA - Certified Unified Program Agency 

• San Luis Obispo Department of Environmental Health Services 
• https://www.slocounty.ca.gov/departments/health-agency/public-health/environmental-

health-services/cupa-program-(hazardous-materials-and-waste) 
 
DDW - Drinking Water Program (State Water Resources Control Board) 

• https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/drinking_water/programs/ 
 
ECM - Energy Conservation Module 

• Technology that helps save energy by making smart adjustments to a system or device. 
 
EDU - Equivalent Dwelling Unit (Water Allocation Unit) 

• https://www.cambriacsd.org/will-serves-and-retrofits 
 

EIR - Environmental Impact Report (See CEQA and MND's) 
 
LAFCO (CALAFCO) - Local Agency Formation Commission - https://calafco.org/ 
 
LCP - Local Coastal Program 

• Coastal planning documents that allow California’s 76 coastal zone cities and counties to 
implement the Coastal Act at the local level. 

• https://www.coastal.ca.gov/lcp/lcp-info/ 

Acronyms and Explanations 

 

8D

345

https://www.slocleanair.org/
https://ceqaportal.org/
https://www.slocounty.ca.gov/departments/health-agency/public-health/environmental-health-services/cupa-program-(hazardous-materials-and-waste)
https://www.slocounty.ca.gov/departments/health-agency/public-health/environmental-health-services/cupa-program-(hazardous-materials-and-waste)
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/drinking_water/programs/
https://www.cambriacsd.org/will-serves-and-retrofits
https://calafco.org/
https://www.coastal.ca.gov/lcp/lcp-info/


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Utilities Report for Department Activities         
May 2025 

 19 

 
 
 
 
Lift Station 

• A pump that moves wastewater from a lower elevation to a higher elevation, so that it can 
reach a wastewater treatment plant. They are installed in low-lying areas or places with 
deep pipes. 

 
NCAC - North Coast Advisory Council 

• https://www.ncacslo.org/ 
 
NOE - Notice of Exemption 
 
NOFO - Notice of Funding Opportunity 
 
NPDES - National Pollutants Discharge Elimination System 

• Permit for discharge to water 
 
MCL – Maximum Contaminant Level 
 
MND - Mitigated Negative Declaration (Re: CEQA and EIR's) 

• A mitigated negative declaration (MND) is a document that states that a project will not 
have a significant environmental impact. 

 
MOU – Memorandum of Understanding: Non-binding agreement between two or more parties that 
outlines their intentions and roles 
 
Potholing – Creating holes to locate and map the path of underground pipes or conduit. 
 
RAS – Return-Activated Sludge 

• Settled activated sludge that is collected in the secondary clarifier and returned to the 
aeration basin to mix with incoming raw wastewater. 

 
SCADA  - Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (Method of machine control) 

• https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/SCADA 
 
SGMA - Sustainable Groundwater Management Act  

• https://water.ca.gov/programs/groundwater-management/sgma-groundwater-management  
 
  

Acronyms and Explanations (Continued) 

 

8D

346

https://www.ncacslo.org/
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/SCADA
https://water.ca.gov/programs/groundwater-management/sgma-groundwater-management


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Utilities Report for Department Activities         
May 2025 

 20 

 
 
SWCA - Steven W Carothers Associates (Environmental Consulting Firm) 

• https://www.swca.com/  
 
TDS - Total Dissolved Solids 
 
TMDL - Total Maximum Daily Load 

• A TMDL is the calculation of the maximum amount of a pollutant allowed to enter a 
waterbody 

 
UWMP - Urban Water Management Plan (CA Dept of Water Resources) 
 
VFD - Variable Frequency Drive 

• A type of motor controller that regulates the speed and torque of an electric motor by 
changing the frequency and voltage of the power supply. 

 
WAS – Waste Activated Sludge 

• Excess biomass removed from the system and sent for further treatment or disposal. 
 
WDR - Waste Discharge Requirements 

• Permit for discharge to land 
 
ZLD - Zero Liquid Discharge 

• https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Zero_liquid_discharge 

Acronyms and Explanations (Continued) 

 

8D

347

https://www.swca.com/
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Zero_liquid_discharge


5/15/2025
Well Read Date

Well Name Well Description/Location
Distance to Water 

Level (ft)
Reference Point 

Elevation AMSL (ft)
Depth AMSL (ft) Comments 

23R High School 33.57 83.42 49.85

SR4* CCCD Production 30.68 82.00 51.32

SR3 CCSD Production 19.00 54.30 35.30

SR1 CCSD 17.45 46.40 28.95

21R3 County Parks 8.00 12.88 4.88 Meter Read (CF): 49570

WBE Windsor Bridge East 11.55 16.87 5.32

WBW Windsor Bridge West 11.96 17.02 5.06

SR4 51.32

AVG SR1 & SR3 32.13

Well Name Well Description/Location
Distance to Water 

Level (ft)
Reference Point 

Elevation AMSL (ft)
Depth AMSL (ft) Comments 

16D1 Van Gordon Creek Bridge 6.69 11.36 4.67

MW4 Monitoring at Lagoon Entrance 11.00 15.95 4.95

MW1 Monitoring at Blowers 42.11

MW2 Monitoring at Influent 38.10

MW3 Monitoring at Pond Gate 49.56

9M1 Warren's Van Gordon Creek 65.63

9P2 Gradient Monitoring 10.34 19.11 8.77

9P7 WRF Intake 20.69

9L1 Abandoned Irrigation 16.07 27.33 11.26

RIW WRF Injection Well 25.41

SS4 CCCD 14.62 25.92 11.30

MIW WRF Injection Monitoring 29.89

SS3* CCSD Production 15.36 33.73 18.37

SS2* CCSD Production 14.31 33.16 18.75

Unable to read SS2. Depth 
AMSL calculated as an 

average of SS3 & SS1. 14.31 
is not accurate.

SS1* CCSD Production 13.25 32.37 19.12

11B1 Pedotti 105.43

11C1 Pedotti 13.85 98.20 84.35

PFNW Palmer Flats 93.22

10A1 Pedotti's Recorder 78.18

10G2 New Rock Plant 62.95

10G1 Old Rock Plant 59.55

10F2 Warren 66.92

10M2 Pedotti 23.13 55.21 32.08

9J3 Pedotti 43.45

Lagoon Creek Pedestrian Bridge 19.17 Mitigation Erosion: None

AVG S1, SS2 & SS3 18.75

SS4/9P2 Gradient 2.53

*Above Mean Sea Level (AMSL)
*CCSD's Production Wells
Reference point on 16D1, MIW1, MIW2, MIW3, 9P7, RIW, MIW1, SS1, SS2 and SS3 updated on 2/17/2015

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES  WELL LEVELS

SAN SIMEON CREEK WELLS

SANTA ROSA CREEK WELLS

348



0.00

2.00

4.00

6.00

8.00

10.00

12.00

14.00

16.00

18.00

20.00

22.00

24.00

26.00

28.00

M
AR 15 (start)

APR 1

APR 15

M
AY 1

M
AY 15

JU
N

E 1

JU
N

E 15

JU
LY 1

JU
LY 15

AU
G 1

AU
G 15

SEPT 1

SEPT 15

O
CT 1

O
CT 15

N
O

V 1

N
O

V 15

DEC 1

DEC 15

JAN
 1

JAN
 15

FEB 1

FEB 14

M
AR 1

M
AR 15 (end)

El
ev

at
io

n 
ab

ov
e 

Se
a 

Le
ve

l (
Fe

et
)

San Simeon Creek Well Levels
Mid-March 2025 Levels to Date and

1988 to Current, Min, Max, & Average

Minimum Maximum Average 2025

349



0.00

2.00

4.00

6.00

8.00

10.00

12.00

14.00

16.00

18.00

20.00

22.00

24.00

26.00

28.00

M
AR 15 (start)

APR 1

APR 15

M
AY 1

M
AY 15

JU
N

E 1

JU
N

E 15

JU
LY 1

JU
LY 15

AU
G 1

AU
G 15

SEPT 1

SEPT 15

O
CT 1

O
CT 15

N
O

V 1

N
O

V 15

DEC 1

DEC 15

JAN
 1

JAN
 15

FEB 1

FEB 14

M
AR 1

M
AR 15 (end)

El
ev

at
io

n 
ab

ov
e 

Se
a 

Le
ve

l (
Fe

et
)

San Simeon Creek Well Levels
Last 10 years

March 2015 - Current

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

350



0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

20

22

24

26

28

M
AR 15 (start)

APR 1

APR 15

M
AY 1

M
AY 15

JU
N

E 1

JU
N

E 15

JU
LY 1

JU
LY 15

AU
G 1

AU
G 15

SEPT 1

SEPT 15

O
CT 1

O
CT 15

N
O

V 1

N
O

V 15

DEC 1

DEC 15

JAN
 1

JAN
 15

FEB 1

FEB 14

M
AR 1

M
AR 15 (end)

El
ev

at
io

n 
ab

ov
e 

Se
a 

Le
ve

l (
Fe

et
)

San Simeon Creek Well Levels
1988 - Current

1988
1989
1990
1991
1992
1993
1994
1995
1996
1997
1998
1999
2000
2001
2002
2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025

351



0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

20

22

24

26

28

M
AR

 1
5

AP
R 

1

AP
R 

15

M
AY

 1

M
AY

 1
5

JU
N

 1

JU
N

 1
5

JU
L 

1

JU
L 

15

AU
G 

1

AU
G 

15

SE
PT

 1

SE
PT

 1
5

O
CT

 1

O
CT

 1
5

N
O

V 
1

N
O

V 
15

DE
C 

1

DE
C 

15

 JA
N

 1

JA
N

 1
5

FE
B 

1

 F
EB

 1
5

M
AR

 1

M
AR

 1
5

El
ev

at
io

n 
Ab

ov
e 

Se
a 

Le
ve

l (
fe

et
)

1988 to Current Statistical San Simeon Well Level Summary by Month
showing Minimums, Maximums, 25 % Percentile, 75% Percentile

Average Level is the line between the Blue (hatched) and Green (solid) bars
Minimum Average 25th Percentile 75th Percentile 2025

352



0.00

5.00

10.00

15.00

20.00

25.00

30.00

35.00

40.00

45.00

50.00

55.00

60.00

65.00

EL
EV

AT
IO

N
 A

BO
VE

 S
EA

 L
EV

EL

SANTA ROSA CREEK WELL LEVELS
March 2025 - Current

23R SR3 SR1 WBE SR4  Indicates CCSD Production wells

353



2025
Production 

Wells

DAY OF 
MONTH

SS #1 SS #2 SS #3 SR4 SR1 SR3*
ALL WELLS 

TOTAL 
(galx1000)

Daily 
Pumpage (AF)

Month to Date 
(AF)

AWTP Santa Rosa SR3 
(galx1,000)

SR4 (gal)

1 0.00 261.00 94.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 355.00 1.09 1 19725 6520244
2 0.00 250.00 190.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 440.00 1.35 2
3 0.00 249.00 171.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 420.00 1.29 4
4 0.00 240.00 208.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 448.00 1.37 5
5 0.00 265.00 190.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 455.00 1.40 6
6 0.00 255.00 224.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 479.00 1.47 8
7 0.00 168.00 140.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 308.00 0.95 9
8 0.00 254.00 218.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 472.00 1.45 10
9 0.00 0.00 0.00 493.00 0.00 0.00 493.00 1.51 12

10 0.00 0.00 0.00 429.00 0.00 0.00 429.00 1.32 13
11 0.00 0.00 0.00 538.00 0.00 0.00 538.00 1.65 15
12 0.00 0.00 0.00 488.00 0.00 0.00 488.00 1.50 16
13 0.00 0.00 0.00 508.00 0.00 0.00 508.00 1.56 18
14 0.00 0.00 0.00 467.00 0.00 0.00 467.00 1.43 19
15 0.00 24.00 170.00 203.00 0.00 0.00 397.00 1.22 21
16 0.00 219.00 181.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 400.00 1.23 22
17 0.00 0.00 0.00 509.00 0.00 0.00 509.00 1.56 23
18 0.00 0.00 0.00 493.00 0.00 0.00 493.00 1.51 25
19 0.00 0.00 0.00 443.00 0.00 0.00 443.00 1.36 26
20 0.00 47.00 48.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 595.00 1.83 28
21 0.00 237.00 121.00 1.00 0.00 0.00 359.00 1.10 29
22 0.00 0.00 0.00 527.00 0.00 0.00 527.00 1.62 31
23 0.00 0.00 0.00 410.00 0.00 0.00 410.00 1.26 32
24 0.00 0.00 0.00 509.00 0.00 0.00 509.00 1.56 34
25 0.00 43.00 40.00 532.00 0.00 0.00 615.00 1.89 35
26 0.00 0.00 0.00 491.00 0.00 0.00 491.00 1.51 37
27 0.00 38.00 28.00 527.00 0.00 0.00 593.00 1.82 39
28 0.00 21.00 45.00 355.00 0.00 0.00 421.00 1.29 40
29 0.00 232.00 209.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 441.00 1.35 41
30 0.00 245.00 224.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 469.00 1.44 43
31 0.00 224.00 313.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 537.00 1.65 45 19725.00 6721118.00

TOTALS 0.00 3272.00 2814.00 8423.00 0.00 0.00 14509.00 44.53 (galx1000) 0.00 0.00 (galx1000) 0.00 200.87
Daily AVG 0.00 105.55 90.77 271.71 0.00 0.00 468.03 1.44 (ACRE-FEET) 0.00 0.00 (ACRE-FEET) 0.00 0.62

AF 0.00 10.04 8.64 25.85 0.00 0.00 44.53
Peak 615.00

100% 100% 100%
Corrected 0.00 3272.00 2814.00 8423.00 0.00 0.00 14509.00 44.53 (ACRE-FEET)

DATE READ
5/1/2025 421.00

GROSS 
DIVERSION 

(AF)

NET 
DIVERSION 

(AF)

NET 
PRODUCTION 

(AF)

YTD NET 
PRODUCTION 

(AF)
5/31/2025 430.00

18.68 18.53 18.68 167.28
Total 
Recirc (ccf)

9.00

26.47 26.47 26.47 29.13
Total 
Recirc (AF)

0.02

45.14 44.99 45.14 196.41
0.00

Diversion: Total volume diverted from creek underflow storage (gross); Total volume diverted under the CCSD's licenses (net)

BACKWASH TOTAL

San Simeon Total

SS & SR TOTAL
Advanced Water Treatment Plant

Santa Rosa Total

Mitigation Both Creeks 
(galx1000)

WELLS (galx1000)

Meter Correction Factors from Calibration done

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT MAY DIVERSION

*Raw totals

ANALYZER METER

354



Potable Water Shortage Assessment1
Start Year: 2024 Volumetric Unit Used: AF

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Total
Anticipated Unconstrained Demand 51.74 48.97 45.82 46.35 42.77 41.06 37.16 34.65 37.79 40.75 43.01 45.70 515.77

Actual Demand 52.17 49.16 45.01 46.77 40.69 40.63 40.58 33.80 37.39 39.11 45.14 0.00 470.45
Supply Adjustment 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Anticipated Total Water Supply 55.49 49.20 40.74 38.43 41.19 43.81 44.74 39.34 38.20 39.05 43.52 46.19 519.90
Accrued Surplus/Shortage from Previous Month 0.0 3.3 0.0 -4.3 -8.3 0.5 3.2 4.2 5.5 0.8 -0.1
Anticipated Surplus/Shortage w/o WSCP Action 3.7 3.5 -5.0 -12.2 -9.9 3.2 10.8 8.8 6.0 -0.9 0.4 0.5 9.0

Anticipated % Surplus/Shortage w/o WSCP Action 7% 7% -11% -26% -23% 8% 29% 26% 16% -2% 1% 1% 2%
State Standard Shortage Level 1 1 2 3 3 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Anticipated Benefit from WSCP:  Supply Augmentation 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Anticipated Benefit from WSCP:  Demand Reduction 5.2 4.9 9.2 13.9 12.8 4.1 3.7 3.5 3.8 4.1 9.8 7.7 82.6

Actual Benefit from WSCP Action -0.4 -0.2 0.8 -0.4 2.1 0.4 -3.4 0.9 0.4 1.6 -2.1
 Anticipated Surplus/Shortage w/WSCP Action 8.9 8.4 4.1 1.7 2.9 7.4 14.5 12.3 9.7 3.2 10.2 8.2 91.6

Anticipated % Surplus/Shortage w/WSCP Action 17% 17% 9% 4% 7% 18% 39% 36% 26% 8% 24% 18% 18%
Actual Surplus/Shortage 3.3 0.0 -4.3 -8.3 0.5 3.2 4.2 5.5 0.8 -0.1 -1.6 3.3

Actual % Surplus/Shortage 6% 0% -9% -18% 1% 8% 10% 16% 2% 0% -4% 0.69%
State Standard Shortage Level Achieved 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Anticipated Unconstrained Demand: Projection based on the average water production over the last 3 reporting years (July 2018 -June 2021).
Actual Demand: The total amount of potable water produced for the month.
Supply Adjustment: Observed aquifer recharge/depletion from seasonal precipitation/lack thereof.
Anticipated Total Water Supply: The target amount to be produced assuming dry years conditions.
Anticipated Surplus/Shortage w/o WSCP: The volumetric difference in the anticipated unconstrained demand and anticipated total water supply without any shortage response actions.
Anticipated % Surplus/Shortage w/o WSCP Action: The difference in the anticipated unconstrained demand and anticipated total water supply without any shortage response actions expressed as a percentage.
State Standard Shortage Level: The corresponding shortage level per California Water Code Section 10632(a)(3)(A).
Anticipated Benefit from WSCP - Supply Augmentation: Projected volume of water added to the supply, such as from the operation of the Water Reclamation Facility.
Anticipated Benefit from WSCP - Demand Reduction: Projected volume of water conserved through shortage response actions. 
Actual Benefit from WSCP Action: Actual supply augmentation or demand reduction achieved.
Revised Anticipated Surplus/Shortage w/WSCP Action: Volumetric difference between the anticipated surplus/shortage w/o WSCP action and the actual benefits obtained.
Revised Anticipated % Surplus/Shortage w/WSCP Action: Difference between the anticipated surplus/shortage w/o WSCP action and the actual benefits obtained expressed as a percentage.
Actual Surplus/Shortage: Volumetric difference between the anticipated total water supply (including any adjustments) and the actual total demand.
Actual % Surplus/Shortage: Difference between the anticipated total water supply (including any adjustments) and the actual total demand expressed as a percentage.
WSCP: Water Shortage Contingency Plan

Definitions for Terms Used in This Table

Planned WSCP Actions

= Projected

1Assessments are based on best available data at time of submitting the report and actual volumes could be different due to many factors.

= Actual

355



YEAR SOURCE JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC ANNUAL 
TOTAL

YEAR

91% 97% 93% 87% 89% 90%

S.S. 39.47 34.04 36.42 38.55 18.53 2.98 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 170.00
S.R. 1.11 0.06 0.94 0.56 26.47 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 29.13

SS & SR TOTAL 40.59 34.10 37.36 39.11 44.99 2.98 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 199.13
AWTP 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

S.S. 35.76 31.01 36.76 36.47 37.36 12.09 35.11 22.00 8.64 20.26 40.59 40.26 356.28
S.R. 1.60 1.69 0.92 0.65 3.87 34.80 17.64 27.82 37.29 26.46 0.16 0.83 153.71

SS & SR TOTAL 37.35 32.69 37.68 37.12 41.23 46.89 52.75 49.81 45.93 46.72 40.69 41.08 510.00
AWTP 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

S.S. 34.88 33.18 30.27 37.48 35.36 32.09 35.66 29.96 29.01 14.94 40.76 43.02 396.61
S.R. 0.40 0.48 4.22 0.94 5.22 12.21 15.91 18.09 16.06 31.66 2.73 0.89 108.80

SS & SR TOTAL 35.28 33.66 34.50 38.42 40.57 44.30 51.57 48.05 45.07 46.60 43.49 43.91 505.42
AWTP 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

S.S. 13.35 35.93 40.71 39.95 43.22 33.05 26.13 19.40 13.74 17.92 31.27 36.45 351.11
S.R. 23.95 0.04 0.03 0.04 0.05 11.17 23.27 27.59 28.77 25.30 7.44 0.32 147.98

SS & SR TOTAL 37.30 35.97 40.74 39.99 43.27 44.22 49.41 46.98 42.50 43.22 38.71 36.77 499.09
AWTP 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

S.S. 31.92 26.91 34.69 36.88 36.41 34.84 31.03 30.49 31.75 27.27 27.28 21.16 370.62
S.R. 9.00 10.22 8.91 9.05 12.02 14.41 20.65 16.40 11.30 14.52 11.69 16.81 155.00

SS & SR TOTAL 40.92 37.14 43.60 45.93 48.43 49.25 51.68 46.89 43.05 41.79 38.97 37.97 525.61
AWTP 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

S.S. 34.86 34.07 30.68 26.63 36.29 40.67 33.16 35.23 34.60 39.39 31.34 13.98 390.90
S.R. 4.10 5.37 6.32 8.97 7.21 7.77 19.10 17.85 14.22 10.67 12.61 27.85 142.04

SS & SR TOTAL 38.96 39.43 37.00 35.60 43.50 48.44 52.25 53.08 48.82 50.06 43.95 41.83 532.93
AWTP 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

S.S. 34.49 23.50 24.82 33.30 35.07 36.17 41.98 39.45 36.02 37.32 33.64 26.26 402.00
S.R. 3.25 9.73 13.89 8.50 7.75 10.16 10.80 10.45 11.12 11.42 11.15 13.78 122.00

SS & SR TOTAL 37.74 33.23 38.71 41.80 42.81 46.33 52.78 49.91 47.13 48.74 44.78 40.05 524.00
AWTP 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

S.S. 14.65 15.73 24.97 32.09 38.50 38.30 32.13 21.54 17.99 12.97 12.65 30.43 291.97
S.R. 30.09 23.61 13.23 6.96 5.02 7.89 22.00 30.88 27.67 31.81 30.59 10.11 239.85

SS & SR TOTAL 44.74 39.34 38.20 39.05 43.52 46.19 54.13 52.42 45.67 44.78 43.24 40.54 531.82
AWTP 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

S.S. 31.85 18.62 40.94 45.34 46.26 34.05 22.86 16.93 23.78 26.18 20.90 22.54 350.25
S.R. 6.97 14.54 6.02 9.89 18.14 28.49 32.63 32.27 16.96 12.25 20.29 21.27 219.72

SS & SR TOTAL 38.82 33.17 46.95 55.23 64.40 62.55 55.49 49.20 40.74 38.43 41.19 43.81 569.97
AWTP 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

S.S. 16.21 8.82 19.61 21.27 24.30 28.06 28.37 26.49 26.02 6.49 5.66 21.53 232.83
S.R. 18.10 27.70 16.92 15.76 15.92 13.96 20.53 18.31 16.92 34.50 31.75 18.46 248.83

SS & SR TOTAL 34.31 36.53 36.52 37.03 40.21 42.02 48.90 44.80 42.94 40.99 37.42 39.98 481.66
AWTP 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 10.33 7.04 5.70 23.07

S.S. 19.95 16.65 17.16 17.79 16.18 14.14 15.14 17.39 20.36 26.17 23.74 21.23 225.89
S.R. 14.77 14.90 20.53 20.68 20.99 26.51 29.51 27.78 21.94 16.05 13.57 13.90 241.13

SS & SR TOTAL 34.72 31.55 37.69 38.47 37.17 40.65 44.65 45.17 42.30 42.22 37.31 35.13 467.02
AWTP 5.55 14.34 12.49 7.61 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.68 8.07 6.29 10.89 68.92

S.S. 22.93 16.97 24.90 25.03 19.39 14.40 11.94 0.00 0.76 24.32 13.74 23.81 198.17
S.R. 34.69 19.85 10.00 10.44 18.88 24.19 30.89 43.09 36.26 12.06 18.63 9.62 268.59

SS & SR TOTAL 57.62 36.82 34.90 35.47 38.27 38.59 42.82 43.09 37.01 36.37 32.36 33.44 466.76

20
19

20
19

20
22

20
14

20
14

20
22

20
23

20
23

20
16

20
16

20
15

20
15

20
24

20
24

20
17

20
21

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
NET WATER DIVERSION, BY SOURCE

REPORTED IN ACRE-FEET

20
17

DIFFERENCE
3.23 1.40 -0.32 1.99 3.76

20
18

20
18

20
20

20
20

(Current YR - Previous YR)

20
21

20
25

20
25

356



YEAR SOURCE JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC ANNUAL 
TOTAL

YEAR

91% 97% 93% 87% 89% 90%

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
NET WATER DIVERSION, BY SOURCE

REPORTED IN ACRE-FEET

S.S. 50.55 47.40 54.72 55.27 63.18 46.01 60.82 72.32 57.73 29.84 26.72 28.61 593.16
S.R. 0.00 0.00 0.00 4.27 5.28 27.57 18.12 3.50 7.62 22.56 25.38 25.61 139.91

SS & SR TOTAL 50.55 47.40 54.72 59.54 68.45 73.58 78.94 75.82 65.35 52.40 52.11 54.22 733.07

S.S. 50.12 48.09 52.60 50.52 60.06 56.53 48.17 41.12 36.72 42.22 48.70 50.88 585.73
S.R. 3.54 0.79 0.00 0.66 1.44 11.14 27.95 33.22 29.98 21.43 8.86 0.00 139.01

SS & SR TOTAL 53.66 48.88 52.60 51.18 61.50 67.67 76.12 74.34 66.70 63.65 57.56 50.88 724.74

S.S. 48.05 43.36 45.17 52.11 53.94 49.27 60.52 55.52 45.40 45.67 46.28 51.87 597.16
S.R. 0.00 0.70 0.00 0.76 6.65 11.03 12.97 14.82 19.45 14.15 5.19 0.00 85.72

SS & SR TOTAL 48.05 44.06 45.17 52.87 60.59 60.30 73.49 70.34 64.85 59.82 51.47 51.87 682.88

S.S. 45.44 40.48 47.48 48.39 56.26 55.29 50.73 44.58 35.05 37.61 36.14 36.45 533.90
S.R. 0.00 0.00 0.77 0.62 0.68 8.74 21.96 27.30 32.52 21.71 14.48 9.73 138.51

SS & SR TOTAL 45.44 40.48 48.25 49.01 56.94 64.03 72.69 71.88 67.57 59.32 50.62 46.18 672.41

S.S. 28.17 37.57 50.95 58.52 48.56 37.47 48.80 40.69 31.99 44.62 53.05 46.55 526.94
S.R. 24.83 3.81 0.00 0.00 13.53 26.06 25.21 34.10 32.64 11.02 0.00 1.34 172.54

SS & SR TOTAL 53.00 41.38 50.95 58.52 62.09 63.53 74.01 74.79 64.63 55.64 53.05 47.89 699.48

S.S. 43.35 45.35 51.55 52.59 40.45 33.03 40.15 47.57 47.24 41.53 21.47 25.41 489.69
S.R. 2.33 0.67 0.71 2.20 24.69 33.55 32.94 24.87 18.26 21.03 32.21 24.46 217.92

SS & SR TOTAL 45.68 46.02 52.26 54.79 65.14 66.58 73.09 72.44 65.50 62.56 53.68 49.87 707.61

S.S. 57.70 47.45 56.47 60.50 56.11 51.21 55.95 63.48 58.72 37.58 34.83 38.61 618.61
S.R. 0.00 0.00 0.60 1.81 14.47 22.24 23.47 12.37 5.29 18.70 21.20 9.42 129.57

SS & SR TOTAL 57.70 47.45 57.07 62.31 70.58 73.45 79.42 75.85 64.01 56.28 56.03 48.03 748.18

S.S. 50.81 49.10 48.82 49.65 60.58 65.65 56.12 59.67 52.49 42.86 34.46 42.75 612.96
S.R. 0.00 0.78 0.00 0.62 0.74 2.56 23.58 20.72 20.17 23.88 26.46 13.63 133.14

SS & SR TOTAL 50.81 49.88 48.82 50.27 61.32 68.21 79.70 80.39 72.66 66.74 60.92 56.38 746.10

S.S. 50.05 46.16 51.09 55.01 65.70 68.81 80.52 61.60 48.71 47.08 40.83 36.70 652.26
S.R. 0.00 0.62 0.93 0.76 0.76 0.73 1.64 17.32 20.25 21.69 16.92 7.36 88.98

SS & SR TOTAL 50.05 46.78 52.02 55.77 66.46 69.54 82.16 78.92 68.96 68.77 57.75 44.06 741.24

S.S. 55.83 51.40 58.56 64.33 67.98 52.62 47.04 39.68 41.06 34.80 49.30 49.92 612.52
S.R. 0.00 0.61 1.17 4.84 8.68 22.08 30.80 36.30 27.32 24.95 1.73 1.63 160.11

SS & SR TOTAL 55.83 52.01 59.73 69.17 76.66 74.70 77.84 75.98 68.38 59.75 51.03 51.55 772.63

S.S. 52.73 49.97 57.35 58.32 62.82 68.22 65.05 63.34 58.91 67.08 56.20 48.84 708.83
S.R. 0.70 1.11 0.48 0.94 1.84 5.63 19.77 22.04 16.00 6.58 3.12 5.84 84.05

SS & SR TOTAL 53.43 51.08 57.83 59.26 64.66 73.85 84.82 85.38 74.91 73.66 59.32 54.68 792.88

S.S. 54.43 52.23 60.70 65.43 60.75 55.13 66.79 73.35 66.59 62.03 56.36 53.98 727.77
S.R. 1.28 1.27 1.10 1.11 14.82 22.79 19.54 9.67 3.52 4.02 2.04 0.55 81.71

SS & SR TOTAL 55.71 53.50 61.80 66.54 75.57 77.92 86.33 83.02 70.11 66.05 58.40 54.53 809.48

S.S. 56.16 48.05 55.92 60.69 73.30 77.51 85.01 78.50 53.45 56.21 48.16 52.29 745.25
S.R. 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5.78 21.08 16.87 8.06 0.89 52.68

SS & SR TOTAL 56.16 48.05 55.92 60.69 73.30 77.51 85.01 84.28 74.53 73.08 56.22 53.18 797.93

S.S. 56.41 50.43 55.27 65.40 70.84 73.60 85.00 84.68 73.30 65.60 58.49 59.80 798.82
S.R. 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

SS & SR TOTAL 56.41 50.43 55.27 65.40 70.84 73.60 85.00 84.68 73.30 65.60 58.49 59.80 798.82

S.S. 56.40 45.26 52.16 57.40 70.43 71.35 85.41 82.68 69.45 68.04 57.78 57.69 774.05
S.R. 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.04 0.02 0.07 0.01 0.02 0.32 0.02 0.00 0.00 0.53

SS & SR TOTAL 56.41 45.27 52.17 57.44 70.45 71.42 85.42 82.70 69.77 68.06 57.78 57.69 774.58

S.S. 44.39 46.36 47.00 50.53 56.43 63.43 77.75 80.30 68.35 66.58 54.06 52.13 707.31
S.R. 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.00 0.01 0.01 0.09 0.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.16

20
00

20
00

99
8

99
8

20
07

20
07

20
13

20
13

20
12

20
12

20
11

20
11

20
10

20
10

20
09

20
09

20
08

20
08

20
01

20
01

20
06

20
06

20
05

20
05

19
99

19
99

20
04

20
04

20
03

20
03

20
02

20
02

357



YEAR SOURCE JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC ANNUAL 
TOTAL

YEAR

91% 97% 93% 87% 89% 90%

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
NET WATER DIVERSION, BY SOURCE

REPORTED IN ACRE-FEET

SS & SR TOTAL 44.40 46.37 47.01 50.54 56.43 63.44 77.76 80.39 68.36 66.58 54.06 52.13 707.47

S.S. 50.61 49.20 65.66 68.65 76.18 79.14 82.31 57.02 37.32 27.50 38.96 45.96 678.51
S.R. 0.02 0.08 0.02 0.02 0.02 0.02 0.38 25.92 31.54 36.85 12.41 0.01 107.29

SS & SR TOTAL 50.63 49.28 65.68 68.67 76.20 79.16 82.69 82.94 68.86 64.35 51.37 45.97 785.80

S.S. 46.66 43.40 47.39 56.95 66.18 70.83 75.70 77.27 68.23 65.58 50.37 49.43 717.99
S.R. 0.01 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.01 0.03 0.02 0.01 0.02 0.02 0.02 0.26

SS & SR TOTAL 46.67 43.43 47.42 56.98 66.21 70.84 75.73 77.29 68.24 65.60 50.39 49.45 718.25

S.S. 41.30 41.10 47.10 52.14 53.50 59.00 74.70 74.10 65.40 64.70 55.30 47.60 675.94
S.R. 1.90 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.90

SS & SR TOTAL 43.20 41.10 47.10 52.14 53.50 59.00 74.70 74.10 65.40 64.70 55.30 47.60 677.84

S.S. 47.00 38.60 48.60 52.00 54.60 63.40 69.30 47.80 31.70 30.80 28.20 26.00 538.00
S.R. 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.10 0.00 0.00 25.00 30.20 27.70 21.20 19.90 124.10

SS & SR TOTAL 47.00 38.60 48.60 52.00 54.70 63.40 69.30 72.80 61.90 58.50 49.40 45.90 662.10

S.S. 50.10 45.70 52.60 56.30 68.30 68.80 68.10 69.80 59.80 56.10 51.40 43.50 690.50
S.R. 0.50 0.30 0.00 0.00 0.10 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.90

SS & SR TOTAL 50.60 46.00 52.60 56.30 68.40 68.80 68.10 69.80 59.80 56.10 51.40 43.50 691.40

S.S. 45.30 42.20 45.90 55.20 64.00 58.10 44.90 41.80 35.00 32.80 34.00 43.10 542.30
S.R. 0.80 0.30 0.10 0.40 0.50 6.10 22.70 28.10 26.30 25.10 19.50 5.50 135.40

SS & SR TOTAL 46.10 42.50 46.00 55.60 64.50 64.20 67.60 69.90 61.30 57.90 53.50 48.60 677.70

S.S. 26.90 23.10 32.70 39.60 48.60 44.10 40.10 34.80 30.50 28.00 26.40 30.10 404.90
S.R. 15.30 13.10 0.50 0.10 0.10 5.50 15.00 21.60 20.20 21.00 19.70 18.70 150.80

SS & SR TOTAL 42.20 36.20 33.20 39.70 48.70 49.60 55.10 56.40 50.70 49.00 46.10 48.80 555.70

S.S. 45.70 47.00 55.28 44.75 31.46 32.34 40.00 38.00 31.91 31.40 29.40 29.90 457.14
S.R. 8.70 0.80 0.50 18.03 32.30 26.79 22.30 22.20 20.64 20.20 19.30 14.90 206.66

SS & SR TOTAL 54.40 47.80 55.78 62.78 63.76 59.13 62.30 60.20 52.55 51.60 48.70 44.80 663.80

S.S. 51.00 47.90 53.90 61.90 57.20 62.20 69.20 60.90 36.30 38.70 42.60 40.60 622.40
S.R. 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.00 13.80 13.50 17.90 28.00 42.00 22.60 17.60 18.20 174.60

SS & SR TOTAL 51.00 47.90 53.90 62.90 71.00 75.70 87.10 88.90 78.30 61.30 60.20 58.80 797.00

S.S. 51.20 57.90 63.20 47.30 57.40 44.20 50.00 51.70 41.90 37.40 27.40 36.00 565.60
S.R. 0.00 0.00 0.00 16.30 15.70 30.70 31.20 34.90 36.00 34.90 35.20 19.00 253.90

SS & SR TOTAL 51.20 57.90 63.20 63.60 73.10 74.90 81.20 86.60 77.90 72.30 62.60 55.00 819.50

S.S. 41.51 41.30 48.40 63.00 68.80 63.80 66.10 62.90 49.90 36.40 32.90 42.30 617.31
S.R. 10.20 3.80 0.00 0.00 2.00 13.80 22.40 26.00 28.80 35.60 19.30 6.59 168.49

SS & SR TOTAL 51.71 45.10 48.40 63.00 70.80 77.60 88.50 88.90 78.70 72.00 52.20 48.89 785.8019
87

19
87

Net diversion totals reported 2016 to current. Previous years are gross totals and may include water volumes also reported under riparian statements.

19 19

19
88

19
88

19
92

19
92

19
91

19
91

19
90

19
90

19
89

19
89

19
93

19
93

19
96

19
96

19
94

19
94

19
95

19
95

19
97

19
97

358



 
9B 

 
Report on the May 15, 2025, Fire Protection Standing Committee meeting, for the June 12,  2025, 

CCSD Board Agenda 
 
The May 15, 2025, Regular Meeting of the Fire Protection Standing Committee was held at the Veterans’ 
Memorial Hall in person and via Zoom. 
 
Committee Chair Tom Gray called the meeting to order at 10:31 a.m. 
 
Other Committee members present were Arthur Chapman, Gordon Heinrich, David Pierson and Tony 
Safford. Ron De Luca was absent. 
 
Staff present were General Manager Matthew McElhenie, Fire Chief Michael Burkey, Fire Captain Greg McGill, 
Fire Captain Craig Brooks, and Facilities and Resources Manager David Aguirre.  
 
Members of public in person: Margie Zlotowitz, Thomas Johnson,  
Members of public online: Tina Dickason, Dan Turner, Crosby and Laura Swartz, Jeff Wilson 
 
In his Chair Report,  Chairperson Gray presented a report from Committee Member De Luca on a 
conversation Mr. De Luca had with Scotty Jalbert, director of San Luis Obispo County Office of Emergency 
Services. The discussion covered evacuation planning and the roles of County OES, other agencies and the 
CCSD. Gray said a key point for Cambrians is that their first line of defense is to take care of themselves and 
each other through local planning and preparation. 
 
In Committee Member and Staff Communications, Mr. Heinrichs reported on the recent Mill Valley 
evacuation drill that he attended. He described the city’s system to notify community members of evacuation 
orders and routings. He noted that the planning for the event was extensive and supported by the South Marin 
County Fire Protection District which provided funding and resources. He also noted that the drill had the 
benefit of countywide funding, which is not available to Cambria. 
 
Chief Burkey further commented on the Mill Valley drill, which he and General Manager McElhenie also 
attended. He said the key point taken away from the exercise was the importance of thorough planning, 
including identifying zones and preparing residents to participate.  He said the agencies involved have more 
resources than Cambria, including a dedicated emergency planning staff. 
 
In Public Comment, Dan Turner updated the Committee on weed abatement work on CCSD-owned parcels. 
Tina Dickason spoke in support of CCSD contracting with CalFire for local fire protection services.  
Ms. Zlovowitz asked how weed abatement will be handled for residences. Mr. Johnson asked if there was any 
progress in negotiation with property owners along potential evacuation routes.  
 
Chairperson Gray also noted a written comment from M. Levkoff asking what is being done to create an 
alternate evacuation route. 
 
On the Consent Agenda, the Committee approved the April  17, 2025, minutes on a vote of 4-0. 
 
In Regular Business, the Committee took up the following items:  
  

1) Discussion and Consideration of Public Document Regarding Weed Abatement 
 
A new draft of the proposed document was presented with the meeting Agenda. Mr. Safford gave an update 
on his ad hoc committee’s work so far on preparing the document. He noted the  initiatives are under way at 
the state and local level to develop laws and policies regarding defensible space, as well as the efforts by 

359



 
9B 

Chief Burkey to organize Cambria residents at the neighborhood level for emergency preparedness. He raised 
the question of how the materials being prepared by the ad hoc committee could best interface with these 
efforts. 
 
General Manager McElhenie also updated the Committee on information, such as maps, being developed and 
that could be distributed to the public in the near future. He noted that many members of the public do not 
have access to CCSD emails and do not regularly visit the CCSD website; he suggested that these people may 
best be reached by regular mail in the billing process. 
 
Public comment was taken from Crosby Swartz and Tina Dickason. 
 
At Chair Gray’s suggestion, the item was continued for later consideration.  
 

2) Discussion of Follow-up Actions Related to Fire Safety Town Halls 
 

Chief Burkey said neighborhood liaison meetings will begin with a “kickoff meeting” on May 20 to start the 
process to involve the community in defensible space, emergency and evacuation planning. He said the main 
objective of the meeting is “information-gathering” – learning from the liaisons about the questions and 
concerns they are hearing from the community. He said about 40 people had signed up to be liaisons. 
 
Chief Burkey said the next follow-up step would probably be to make sure the liaisons have all the 
information they need to distribute to their neighbors. 
   

3) Discussion and Consideration of Fire Department Apparatus Replacement and Financing 
 

Fire Chief Burkey discussed the need and planning for a replacement class 1 fire engine. He said the CCSD 
Fire Department has been on a 10-year replacement cycle. The oldest engine (backup to the front-line engine) 
dates from 2007, with a 20-year lifespan. When it is replaced, the new engine becomes the front-line  engine, 
with the current front-line engine becoming the backup.  
 
McElhenie discussed the current budgetary constraints about purchasing a new fire apparatus. He said new 
engines cost roughly $1.2 million, and the new one will have to be financed to prevent too great a hit to 
reserves. He anticipates a build time of three to five years. He that the water tender is even older – dating 
from 2002 -- than the backup engine;  replacing it is expected to cost of $600,000 to $650,000. 
 
Public comment was taken from Tina Dickason. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Pierson to recommend to the CCSD Board of Directors that it start the process of 
acquiring a replacement Class 1 engine. 
 
The motion was seconded by Mr. Safford. 
 
The motion was approved: 4-Ayes; 0-Nays; 0-Abstain; 1-Absent 

 
4) Discussion and Consideration of Fire Station Condition and Possible Related Actions 

 
Chair Gray introduced this item by suggesting that the Committee delay a decision on fire station 
replacement of renovation until the results of recent  fundraising have been determined and until CCSD 
completes its upcoming fiscal year budget. 
 
General Manager McElhenie said there is not enough  money available for a fire station remodeling along 
with the purchase of a new fire engine. He said the money raised at the recent Fire Safe Council fundraiser 

360



 
9B 

should cover some of the station’s pressing needs. Fire Chief Burkey said this item was put before the 
Committee just for discussion at this point. He noted the growing need for repairs as the station ages, and he 
said the station was never designed to house three full-time firefighters.  
 
In response to a question from Mr. Heinrichs regarding the potential work that could be paid for out of the 
$117,000 in fundraising proceeds, Mr. McElhenie noted a potential disparity between the expected cost of a 
privately funded project and  publicly funded work, which has higher labor costs because of prevailing wage 
rules. 
 
Public comment was taken from Tina Dickason. 
 
A motion was made by Mr.  Pierson to table the item until the next Committee meetng, The motion was 
seconded by Mr.  Safford. 

 
The motion was approved: 4-Ayes; 0-Nays; 0-Abstain; 1-Absent 
 
Chairperson Gray adjourned the meeting at 12:21 p.m. 
 
 
--Respectfully submitted by Tom Gray, June 12, 2025 
 

 
  

361



Page 1 of 3 Updated 2025-05-22

PROS Committee Report for the June 12, 2025 CCSD Board Meeting 
The CCSD Parks, Recreation and Open Space (PROS) Committee held a Regular Meeting Thursday May 15, 
2025, 2:02-4:00 PM, in person at the Vets Hall and via Zoom.  We had a quorum, with Committee Members 
Mark Glanzman, Matt Jaffe, Shannon Sutherland and Jeff Wilson present.  Gary Stephenson was absent for 
good cause.  PROS Committee Chair Thomas presided over the meeting.   
Staff was represented by GM Matthew McElhenie, Utilities Manager Jim Green, and Facilities & Resources 
Manager David Aguirre, and on Zoom by Utilities Department Administrative Technician Eric Johnson. 
Public Present: Connie Pendleton, Tony Church, Laura and Crosby Schwartz, Karin Argano, Kitty Connolly, 
Margie Perez-Sesser, Riley McFarland and David Van Lennep from ARC Forestry, and CCSD Director Harry 
Farmer.  On Zoom: Steve Auten from ARC Forestry, Gordon Spencer from US-LTRCD, Fire Safe Council 
Executive Director Dan Turner, Don Howell, Tina Dickason, Juli Amodei, Christina Galloway, and CCSD 
Board President Debra Scott. 
Chair Report, starting 2 minutes into the recording, Chair Thomas reported on highlights from recent CCSD 
Board meetings, and the Saturday May3, 2025 public input session conducted by County Parks & Recreation on 
the repairs and upgrades they plan to the children’s playground at Shamel Park.  The rough schedule has them 
going out to bid this summer, starting construction in the fall and completing the project next spring. 
2. Reports from Affiliated Community Groups:
Forest Committee, Laura Swartz, starting around 6 minutes into the recording, provide an oral report, 
highlighting efforts to reach out to stakeholders, attended a recent event at the historic Octagon Barn, 
participated in Earth Day Festival, and invited participation in Forest Committee meetings. 
Greenspace the Cambria Land Trust, Executive Director Karin Argano, starting around 9 minutes into the 
recording, reported that Greenspace is preparing for the fuel reduction/ forest health management project in 
Strawberry Canyon, education events getting the elementary school kids out in the forest, preparing for the May 
31st fundraiser, and a successful Earth Day Festival. 
3. Public Comment Not on the Agenda, starting around 12 minutes into the recording,

• Tina Dickason commented on Skatepark fundraising.
• Fire Safe Council Executive Director Dan Turner reported that he is working with F&R Manager

Aguirre and Fire Chief Burkey on weed abatement of CCSD owned lots.  Cambria local Tim Radecki,
with North Coast Tree Services, has already completed weed abatement on 40 lots, with the goal for
completion by July 1.   Some of the vacant parcels are so steep that they require repelling, and they're
finding discarded materials dumped in some of the vacant parcels.

• Substantial public comment and discussion regarding weed abatement/ fuel reduction work in Fern
Canyon Preserve, including comments from Crosby Swartz, Laura Swartz and Jeff Wilson.

4. Reports & Project Updates:
4.A Facilities & Resources Manager’s Report, David Aguirre reported, starting around 23 minutes into the
recording,

• Working with Dan Turner and Jim Green on weed abatement/ fuel reduction work of CCSD owned lots.
• Equipment problems have hindered mowing to some extent. Reduced mowing the East Ranch, just

mowed once so far this year, planning to mow again towards the end of May.
• Starting work on the trails and fire breaks on the West Ranch next week.
• Contracting with Williams Pest Management to spray invasive plants on the West Ranch the week of

May 26, in the area between the Marine Terrace Trail and the Ridge Trail.
• Someone has been cutting locks off of the Santa Rosa Trail entrance gate.
• Completed refinishing the last of the Trash, Recycling and Plant Receptacles (TRPRs).

9C

362

http://cambriaforestcommittee.org/
https://octagonbarn.org/
http://cambriaforestcommittee.org/
https://greenspacecambria.org/


 

Page 2 of 3  Updated 2025-05-22 

• Roughly 75% complete on the cabling to inhibit bluff access. 
4.B Friends of the Fiscalini Ranch Preserve Report, FFRP Executive Director Kitty Connolly, starting around 
29 minutes into the recording, 

• Thanked F&R Manager David Aguirre for the cabling to inhibit bluff access, and for spraying the 
weeds. 

• A successful wildflower show, almost 550 different plant specimens. 
• Saturday May 17, 10 AM -12 PM ice plant removal work party. 
• Saturday May 24, 9:00 AM - 1:00 PM pop-up sale at the South bluff trail entrance. 
• Sunday May 18 Founders Dinner at Robin’s to celebrate the 25th anniversary. 
• Saturday May 24, 11 AM - 4 PM, at the Cambria Heritage Festival. 
• Restoration nursery inventory, roughly 700 plants, both trees and understory plants. 

4.D East Ranch Community Park Restroom Project Update Report, starting around 33 minutes into the 
recording, Utilities Manager Jim Green explained the nature of work that has taken place providing electrical 
power to the restroom.  Regarding the OGALS grant, turned in the latest status report last week.  The final 
requirement to receive the $177k funding will be submitting the approved permit, inspection report, and photos 
showing the ADA pathways and signage.   
4.C Skatepark Project Update Report, Juli Amodei, starting around 36 minutes into the recording, 

• It's been a busy 3 weeks of fundraising since the funding gap of $329k was established April 24.   3 
fundraisers have already reduced the funding gap by $100k.   

• Current fundraising efforts include the $100 challenge, with 14 volunteers going door to door, as well as 
the Farmers Market. 

• Watch for the June 14, 11 AM - 2 PM fundraiser with support from our Cambria Fire Department and 
Sons of the American Legion, at the Vets Hall parking lot. 

• A Coast Union High School graduate stated in his scholarship acceptance speech that the first thing he 
wants to do before going to UC Santa Cruz is get this skatepark built. 

Public Comments:  
• Margie Perez-Sesser commented on fundraising progress. 
• Tina Dickason thanked Margie Perez-Sesser, Juli Amodei, all of the skate park volunteers and the 

Cambria Community Council. 
5. Consent Agenda, around 43 minutes into the recording, the Committee unanimously approved the April 3, 
2025 Special Meeting Minutes. 
6. Regular Business 
6.A The Committee received a presentation from Riley McFarland and David Van Lennep with Auten Resource 
Consulting on forest health work planned on Fiscalini Ranch Preserve (FRP), starting around 43 minutes into 
the recording, 
The presentation included substantial background on the history over the last 100 years or so of the Cambria 
Monterrey Pine Forest in general, with focus on FRP, example projects, and the North Coast Regional 
Ecological Strategy for Improving Landscapes (SLO-RESIL). 
The implementation timeline for Fiscalini Ranch Preserve Shows contracting and operational planning starting 
summer 2026, with forest health work commencing spring 2027 on ~36 acres on the West Ranch. 
6.B PROS Goals, starting around 1:42:40 into the recording, Vice Chair Shannon Sutherland, considering that 
we have insufficient time remaining on today's agenda, discussed the plan for updating the PROS Goals, 
focusing on advancing the Community Park Plan, either at the next Regular Meeting on July 17, or potentially 
at a Special Meeting sometime in June. 

9C

363

https://www.cambriacsd.org/2025-05-15-parks-recreation-open-space-pros-committee-meeting


 

Page 3 of 3  Updated 2025-05-22 

 
The next PROS Committee Regular Meeting is scheduled Thursday, July 17, 2025, 2-4 PM, although we may 
schedule a Special Meeting between now and then, so stay tuned to the PROS Committee page on the CCSD 
website. 
Respectfully submitted, 
Michael Thomas, CCSD Vice President and PROS Committee Chair 
 

9C

364

https://www.cambriacsd.org/2025-07-17-parks-recreation-open-space-pros-committee-meeting
https://www.cambriacsd.org/parks-recreation-open-space-pros-committee


9D 
Resources and Infrastructure Report for June 12, 2025 CCSD Meeting 

The Resources and Infrastructure Committee held a regular meeting on Monday May 12, 2025, 2:00pm, in 
person at the Cambria Veterans Memorial Hall, and via Zoom.  

Opening (2:03pm) 

Chairperson Karen Dean called the meeting to order at 2:03pm. A quorum was established. Committee 
Members present were Chairperson Karen Dean, Vice Chair Steven Siebuhr, Secretary Jim Webb, Mark Meeks, 
Jim Grimaud, and Donn Howell. 

Staff present were General Manager Matthew McElhenie, Utilities Department Manager Jim Green, Program 
Manager Tristan Reaper, Admin Tech Eric Johnson, and Water Systems Superintendent Cody Meeks.  

Member of the public present in person was Allan Dean, Jim Bahringer and Michael Calderwood were on 
Zoom. 

There was no Chair Report. 

During Committee Member Communications, Secretary Jim Webb gave a brief report on his experience with 
shallow water fishing and the huge variety of fish that could be found. 

Utilities Department Report (2:06pm) 

Utilities Manager Jim Green reported on the following items. 

• Wastewater Plant EV Chargers: level two EV charger for the Ford Lightning pickup anticipated to be 
installed by the end of the month. 

• Rodeo Grounds Generator has a lead time of June, new set up will include an automatic transfer switch 
that will start the new generator if PGE goes out. SCADA system will give alerts if the power goes out 
and the generator comes on. The old set up had a manual transfer switch. 

• East Ranch Restroom: electrical connection work is underway. The District was required to install their 
own PGE approved pole instead of connecting to the existing PGE pole, the electricians will be pulling 
700 feet of wire from the pole to the building, as well as installing a transformer and separate cut off 
switch in the restroom’s utility chase. Once all that is done, a final inspection will be needed before the 
restroom can become operational. A status report will be submitted to the grant agency for 
reimbursement, and one of the requirements for funding was to put up a sign saying the restroom was 
brought to us by the Prop 68 Grant, and thanking Gov Newsom as well as others from parks, grants, and 
land management. The sign needs to remain in place for at least four years after construction is 
completed. The District is also required to send photos of the sign, of the 4 ft wide ADA access to and 
around the restroom, and the final building inspection reports from the County to the granting agency 
prior to the reimbursement. 

• San Simeon Well Field Transmission and Effluent lines: the CalTrans encroachment permit has been 
resubmitted and has a 90 day review time, SWCA is doing some environmental work, and the District 
has reached out to State Parks. The District is looking into funding sources for the project, and both the 
Utilities Mgr and Program Mgr will be attending a funding fair later in the month. 

• Stuart St Tanks: the Coastal Development Permit has been approved. A permit had to be submitted to the 
County for the 8 ft retaining wall, that may take 3 to 4 weeks more for approval. Because this is a federal 
grant, a lot of time consuming historical, cultural, biological, and environmental studies and surveys were 

365



9D 
required for this project. A discussion on an engineering consultant for the project is on this agenda 
during regular business. 

• Santa Rosa Well 3: this is the District’s least utilized source well and requires the most treatment. There 
were issues with the water treatment contact tanks due to the storms of 2023 which also eroded the Santa 
Rosa bank right at the well head. A sanitary survey was recently done by the Division of Drinking Water, 
and there are concerns with the contact and concentration disinfection time. The well has not been 
operated for a very long time, and Staff has reached out to the Department of Diversion, which is a part 
of the Division of Drinking Water, to discuss what can be done to be able to bring the  SR3 well and 
contact tanks into operational condition for the future if needed, and not lose the diversion rights to it. 

• SST and Lift Station B4: the new subcontractor, Cushman, has been on site at the wastewater treatment 
plant to start the SST projects. Cushman has also provided an updated proposal for the repair or 
replacement of the B4 lift station that is located on the south end of Green St. Staff is looking at full 
replacement of the lift station, and are having some geotechnical borings done to see what is underground 
and how close it is to bedrock. Staff is also working on a Coastal Development Permit for the relocation 
of that lift station. 

• WRF CDP: Staff is responding to the County information hold, there are several things the County is 
requesting clarification on, some of which had been previously submitted.. The County also wants the 
driveway into the site redesigned to a Commercial Class 1A road for ingress and egress.  

• AMI Upgrades: Water Department Superintendent Cody Meeks reported that about 2300 AMI endpoints 
have been installed, 1200 are remaining and may be installed by the end of the month. There will still be 
88 to 100 meters that are in areas with poor cell service coverage and may still need to be manually read. 
Staff at Admin have been working to integrate the new meters into the system so that the customer portal 
will be ready for the public to set up their accounts and be able access their water use data online. Water 
Superintendent Meeks also reminds the public to keep a three foot area around the meters clear so line of 
site is maintained for reading the meters, and please don’t park or build over top of the meters. Recently 
the water department staff went out to read a meter and a shed had been built over top of it. 

• SSMP: The Sanitary Sewer Management Plan is a document that wastewater departments are required by 
the WDR to update every few years. Staff has been working with MKN and should be completing the 
SSMP by the end of the year. The draft may be brought before R&I for review when it is ready. 

• Santa Rosa IFS: The Santa Rosa Instream Flow Study is ongoing. Stream flow data and pump tests are 
underway, and the Committee will be updated with progress reports and status updates as received from 
the consultants. 

• SR4 Easement Road: Underground penetrating radar has been done to locate all the underground 
sprinkler and low voltage lines, as well as some PGE primary lines. A geotechnical consultant has been 
marking locations for boring, and Civil Design Studio is doing engineering on the road design. Staff is 
looking at beginning road construction after July 1st when school will be out. 

There was no public comment on any of the above items. 

Public Comment (2:40pm) 

Jim Bahringer expressed interest in direct potable reuse for the District, and said that it would reduce the water 
drawn out of the ground for the WRF, and could also filter out microplastics.  

Consent Agenda (2:42pm) 

366



9D 
Consideration to Approve the April 14, 2025 Regular Meeting Minutes 

There were no corrections or changes to the minutes, Committee Member Howell moved to approve the 
minutes as written. Motion was seconded by Committee Member Meeks, motion approved with 5-ayes. 

Regular Business 

4.A. Discuss and Review Proposal with MKN for Construction Management Services for the Stuart 
Street Tanks Replacement Project and Consider Forwarding a Recommendation to the CCSD Board of 
Directors. (2:44pm) 

Utilities Manager Jim Green presented the proposal for an agreement for Construction Management Services 
with MKN and the assignment of a Construction Manager for the Stuart St Tanks Replacement Project. This 
agreement will include having an on-site engineer who will also serve as the project inspector, and the 
utilization of a Construction Manager who will help ensure the project is completed within budget, follows 
quality and safety standards, and gets completed within the anticipated time period. The on-site engineer will be 
on the site every day for the first four months of this project, and then at least two to three days a week after 
that. A construction trailer will be set up on District property on the Stuart St side, and that will also be the 
staging area for the construction equipment. The tanks will be removed and replaced one at a time.                                                                                                                                                      
There was no public comment on this topic. 

Committee Member Webb moved to forward this recommendation to the CCSD Board of Directors, motion was 
seconded by Committee Member Meeks, and the motion was approved with 5-Ayes. 

4.B. Discuss and Review Staff’s Proposed Conceptual Level Landscaping Design for the Stuart St Tanks 
Project (2:58pm) 

Utilities Manager Jim Green presented a proposed landscape design plan for the Richard St entrance side of the 
Stuart St tank site. This has always been one of the Districts less attractive sites, and is in a residential 
neighborhood. Two trees have also fallen along side the entrance in the last couple of years, and pulled up quite 
a bit of earth along with them. Program Manager Reaper started to look at how to make this area more attractive 
to the neighboring homes, and sought some proposals for some landscaping. The landscape proposal brought 
forth for review included native and drought tolerant plants that would be easy to maintain once established. 
The landscaping design reviewed was by Ecotones and had an estimated cost of $20k.              No vote was 
taken, but the R&I Committee Members did favor some sort of landscaping in that area.                                                                                                                                                          
There was no public comment on this item. 

4.C. Discuss the 2025-2026 Annual Water Shortage Assessment and Consider Forwarding the Report to 
the CCSS Board of Directors. (3:09pm) 

Program Manager Tristan Reaper presented the Annual Water Shortage Assessment Report. This report is 
requested by the Department of Water Resources and is to be performed on an annual basis in order to evaluate 
the District’s water supplies, the anticipated demand, if there will be a shortage at some point during the year, 
and how to balance the supplies with the demand using our six stages of water supply shortage levels and 
conservation. Mr Reaper gave explanations about the CCSD’s water sources, diversion allocations during the 
dry season as well as the rest of the year from both aquifers, streamflows, gradient differentials, rainfall 
patterns, water year averages used for this report, water storage volumes, and water conservation. Also 
discussed was conservation fatigue among the residential customers, and possible future conservation savings 

367



9D 
with the commercial users. The report indicates expected annual water use in the 500 AFY range, and 
anticipates a possible need for a Stage 2 declaration in August.                                                                                                                               
This presentation by Program Manager Reaper was the most precise, detailed, and clearly understandable report 
I believe this Committee has ever received regarding the Annual Water Shortage Assessment.                                                                                                                            
There was no public comment on this topic. 

Committee Member Meeks moved to forward this report to the CCSD Board of Directors , motion seconded by 
Committee Member Grimaud. Motion passed with 5-Ayes. 

Future Agenda Items (3:41pm) 

Chairperson Dean asked for future agenda items. Secretary Webb mentioned he may not be available for the 
June 16th meeting, Committee Member Meeks volunteered to take the minutes in his absence. An update on the 
Asterra Satellite Leak Detection Service was requested, and an update on the purchase of the Case 580 EV 
tractor. The Committee was reminded that there will be two joint meetings of the R&I and Finance Committees 
on June 25th, the first at 10:30am to tour the Lift Station B4 at the south end of Green St, and the second at 
1:00pm to tour the WWTP and hear an update on the SST projects. 

Adjourn (3:47pm) 

Chairperson Dean adjourned the meeting at 3:37pm. The next R&I Committee meeting is scheduled for June 16 
at 2:00pm. 

Respectfully submitted, 

CCSD Director Karen Dean, R&I Committee Chairperson                                                                                                                                                    

 

 

 

 

 

 

368



9E 

9E - Att 01.docx Page 1 of 1 Written: May 14, 2025 

CTB May 13, 2025 Meeting Summary for the CCSD Board of Directors 
 
The Cambria Tourism Board (CTB) held a meeting May 13, 2025, 1:00-2:39 PM at the Cambria Pines Lodge.  
For reference, the CTB meeting scheduled April 8 was cancelled.  The May 13 meeting was called to order by 
Chair Greg Pacheco at 1:00 PM with CTB Board Members Jim Bahringer, Steve Kniffen, and George 
Marschall present.  Introductions and welcome to attendees CTB Managing Assistant Jill Jackson, 
Unincorporated County Tourism Business Improvement District (CBID) Chief Administrative Officer Cheryl 
Cuming, Dave Sassaman and Jackie Hogan representing Cambria Lawn Bowls Club, and CCSD Director 
Michael Thomas, and on zoom, Jessica Blanchfield with Archer & Hound Advertising, Shannon Marang Cox 
and Erin Stark representing the Arthritis Foundation's 25th Annual California Coast Classic Bike Tour. 
In the Consent Agenda, the Board approved the March 11, 2025 meeting minutes. 
The Board discussed and approved the draft 2025-2026 Fiscal Year Budget.  Substantial discussion on the 
declining reserves, and the $65k in the budget for the Christmas Market Shuttle. 
The Board discussed and approved $8,000 in funding to the Cambria Lawn Bowls Club to assist with the costs 
for several 2025 tournaments. 
The Board discussed and approved $10,000 in funding for the Arthritis Foundation's 25th Annual California 
Coast Classic Bike Tour, scheduled in September. 
The Board discussed and approved a contract with Jill Jackson to continue as CTB Managing Assistant for 
Fiscal Year 2025-2026. 
The Board discussed and proposed minor refinements to the Event Funding Application.   
The Board received and briefly discussed reports from the Marketing Committee, CBID and the Chamber of 
Commerce. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 2:39 PM. 
 
The next CTB Meeting will be June 10, 2025, at 1:00 PM.   
 
 
Respectfully submitted, Michael Thomas, CCSD Board of Directors 

369



9E 
Friends of the Fiscalini Ranch Preserve May 13, 2025 meeting summary 
 
The meeting was called to order by Chair Dianne Anderson at 4:00PM.  In attendance were Vice Chair Tom 
Loganbill, Secretary John Nixon, Treasurer Mary Maher, Board members Bob Detweiler, Cathleen Campe, 
Shari Robasciotti, Jose Luis Sanchez, Rusty Burns, Annika Keely and Keith Seydel.  Also present were Michael 
Thomas, and CCSD Board member and FFRP liaison Harry Farmer.  Absent was Barbara Beuche, assistant to 
Executive Director Connolly. 
 
The minutes from the April 8th, 2025 were presented.  A motion to approve was made by Mary Maher, with a 
second by John Nixon.  Board approval was unanimous. 
 
Public comment was made by all around FFRP volunteer and weeding cheerleader Michael Thomas.  He 
reminded us that Weeding Wednesday would again be happening this week, with focus on the Boardwalk Trail, 
and that ice plant removal, also always the never ending task, would be happening this Saturday the 17th, with 
Marvin Josephson in charge.  In addition, FFRP would be represented at the Heritage Days Celebration at the 
Cambria Historical Society Saturday, May 24th, by Mr Thomas, with various problematic Ranch circumstances 
such as mustard, radish, thistle, ice plant and so forth, on display for our enjoyment, with the hope that some 
folks may choose to volunteer to help keep the Ranch looking as cared for as possible. 
 
Under Matters for Discussion, Executive Director Kitty Connolly provided her monthly report, first informing 
us that a batch of plaques for the linking Boardwalk had arrived, to be installed by Ranch good guys Walt 
Andrus, Brian Morgan, and Tom Loganbill.  So far 180 plaques have been purchased , but after the initial rush 
of donations orders have slowed down.  To describe the process so far, Tom stated that plaques with the names 
of folks being acknowledged would be visible, “around the first bend”.  Ms Connolly enthusiastically reported 
that the Annual Wildflower Show on April 26th and 27th was, “a roaring success” enjoyed by hundreds of 
attendees of all ages and backgrounds, overall just, “a lovely event” with over 500 examples of the abundance 
and beauty of nature throughout much of our county.  Hats off to the dozens of volunteers who again help to 
make this fundraiser such a wonderful and uplifting event.  Kitty also let us know there will be a Pop Up on the 
Ranch on Memorial Day weekend Saturday morning May 24th.  She is actively recruiting volunteers to assist at 
the booth.  Also, this coming Thursday the 15th, the Cambria Community Services District (CCSD) Parks, 
Recreation and Open Space (PROS) Committee will feature a presentation on the Forest Health Grant efforts 
taking place in the coming three years or so on the Ranch, with a “patchy mosaic of treatment areas” and other 
details on this multi million dollar project to be described by Riley McFarland of Auten Resources Consulting. 
 
Chair Anderson stated she had no report, while thanking Vice Chair Loganbill for chairing the April 8th 
meeting in her absence.  She did remind us of the wonderful happening taking place on Sunday, May 18th, the 
“Founder’s Dinner" at Robin’s Restaurant, an opportunity to offer recognition and thanks to so many initially 
involved in the saving of the Ranch, those who have given time, effort and financial donations to make the 
“Jewel of the Central Coast” a reality!  About 90 folks will be in attendance. 
 
Cathleen Campe of the Development Committee further elaborated on the event, letting us know that social 
hour with appetizers and drinks would take place from 5-5;45, followed by comments of appreciation from 
Executive Director Connolly, dinner from 6-6:45, with concluding remarks from Chair Anderson, followed by 
desert.  Finally, a commemorative memento beautifully designed and created by local potter Holly Ludwigson 
will be presented to all in attendance. 
 
Treasurer Mary Maher, just as last month, again commented on the “ups and downs of the stock market”, but 
that financially circumstances were mostly up for FFRP.  She thanked Board member Jose Luis Sanchez for 
reconciling the finances every month! 
 
Vice Chair Loganbill provided the Ranch Report, first by stating that trail maintanence overseer Brian Morgan, 

370



9E 
after years of dedicated service in this area, including the recent month of April, would be stepping down.  And 
while Tom did not elaborate on Brian’s successor, trail work will of course continue!  He stated there are, “far 
less weeds than in the past, used to be much worse early in the season", thanking Michael Thomas and his crew 
for their consistent and ongoing effort in this area. Tom added CCSD Facilities and Resources Supervisor and 
Ranch manager David Aguirre would be contracting out for the spraying of thistle and hemlock in the very near 
future.  Finally, Tom told us the owner of the 1994 Ford truck being considered for purchase by FFRP had 
passed away, and that Marvin Josephson would pursue this opportunity in the future.   
 
At this point Ms Connolly commented on folks walking the Bluff trail with strollers, observing that, “almost 
every one of the strollers have a dog in them”, which aroused a few chuckles. 
 
There was no report from the Restoration Committee, with Annika Keely stating there will be, “a proposal 
coming soon”. 
 
At this point Rusty Burns inquired, “what’s happening on the East Ranch”, referencing the proposed 
Community Park.  Kitty said nothing was occurring at this time. 
 
Ms Keely then asked about the Conservation Easement properties owned by the CCSD.  Ms Connolly replied 
this is “nothing FFRP would be interested in.” 
 
At this point Chair Anderson adjourned the meeting at 4:45 PM. 
 
There is no meeting in June.  The next FFRP monthly meeting will be on Tuesday, July 8th, 2025, at the 
Cambria Center for the Arts (CCAT) Green Room, 1350 Main St. 
 
This summary written and submitted by CCSD Board Director and FFRP liaison Harry Farmer. 
 

371



9E 
CA Coastal Commission Liaison Report for June 12, 2025 CCSD Meeting 

The California Coastal Commission held their monthly meetings May 7-9, 2025 at Half Moon Bay. 

The Coastal Commission covers issues under their jurisdiction all up and down the California Coast, however 
this report will focus on the topics that relate more to the Central Coast, and Cambria. 

In her Executive Director’s Report, Dr Kate Huckelbridge announced that Tom Luster has retired after serving 
over 24 years as a Senior Environmental Scientist in the Commission’s Energy, Ocean Resources and Federal 
Consistency Division. He worked on many important projects and topics over the years, including desalination, 
nuclear waste storage, the siting and operation of nuclear power plants, and protection of the coastal resources 
called for in the Coastal Act.  

A Closed Session was held to discuss pending litigation. Two of the items on that agenda with ties to Cambria 
were Bookout v. the CA Coastal Commission, and Hadian v. CA Coastal Commission. I did not hear a report 
from closed session. 

Four projects in Los Osos were under appeal by the Los Osos Sustainability Group from the San Luis Obispo 
decision granting permits with conditions. All four appeals were addressed with a shared staff report. The 
projects under appeal were for Denise Mueller to construct a 1970 sq ft home with an attached 461 sq ft garage 
and 880 sq ft deck, for Sarabjit Purewal to construct a 3,462 sq ft home with an attached 1,202 sq ft garage and 
associated improvements, for Katie Lee for an after-the-fact approval of a 2,912 sq ft three-unit motel and 
laundry facility, and for Katie Lee for an after-the-fact approval of a 2,673 sq ft mixed use restaurant 
establishment and four-unit hotel/motel.                                                   

The Los Osos Sustainability Group appeals were based on claims that there was not sufficient water for these 
projects, that the groundwater basin is in overdraft, that some wells have elevated chloride levels due to historic 
overuse, and that there is a significant risk of seawater intrusion.                                                                                                                                     
The Coastal Commission staff expressed that considerable time had been spent for quite a few years evaluating 
the Los Osos water supply issues, and that the best available science showed that the Los Osos Groundwater 
Basin was not in overdraft, that withdrawals were not causing significant harm to coastal resources, that the 
community was only using 69% of the sustainable yield without advancing sea water intrusion, and that the 
water supply could support a modest amount of new water using development.                                               

The Coastal Commission determined that the contentions of the appeal did not raise substantial LCP 
conformance issues, and they declined to take jurisdiction over the CDP applications for these four projects. 

Two additional Coastal permit Applications for Los Osos were on the agenda.                         

The first project under De Novo Hearing  was an application by Roger Dick to construct a 1,910 sq ft home 
with an attached 573 sq ft garage had been approved by the County in August of 2023, however at that time the 
Coastal Commission found a substantial issue of conformance with the County’s LCP due to questions 
regarding the adequacy of water supply, wastewater treatment, and habitat protection, and they took jurisdiction 
over the CDP application. Questions were raised whether the community had a sustainable water supply to 
serve this new project and whether the home could legally connect to the public sewer system, and noted it was 
premature to provide for new projects since the LCP had not been updated to include sustainable growth 
parameters. Since then the Commission has evaluated the community’s water supply and coastal resource 
impacts, and has determined that there is an adequate and sustainable water supply for a limited amount of new 

372



9E 
development, and has updated the LCP. This project is now considered to be consistent with the LCP with 
conditions.          

The second project under De Novo Hearing was an application by Steven Brawer and Leanne Watt to construct 
a 2,000 sq ft home with an attached 550 sq ft garage, 900sq ft deck, and 1,00 sq ft patio. The County approved 
this project in June of 2024, and the same substantial issues were found by the Commission as were cited with 
the application for Roger Dick as described above, and also resulted in the Commission taking jurisdiction over 
the project. This particular project is located in an area without public sewer connections, but the LCP allows 
for private septic systems as long as the system meets applicable water quality standards, and this CDP will 
require evidence of that.                          

As the LCP has been updated, and it has been determined that there is an adequate and sustainable water supply 
for limited development, and this project has been found to be consistent with the LCP with conditions. 

Both of these projects were approved unanimously. 

These were the items I felt were most related to our portion of the Central Coast. The next Coastal Commission 
meetings will be June 11-13, 2025 in San Diego, and July 9-11 in Pismo Beach. 

Respectfully submitted, 

CCSD Director Karen Dean 

                                        

 

 

373



9E 
Cambria Forest Committee May 16th, 2025 Meeting Summary 

The meeting was called to order by Chair Crosby Swartz at 10:06 AM.  In attendance were Secretary Christine 
Heinrichs, Treasurer Laura Swartz, Board member Julie Jorgensen, Greenspace Vice President Donni Morgan, 
Rancho Marino Project Manager Keith Seydel, California Native Plant Society (CNPS) local representative 
Neil Havlik, Upper Salinas-Las Tablas Resource Conservation District (US-LTRCD) Program Director Spencer 
Gordon, Steve Auten of Auten Resource Consulting (ARC), Riley McFarland, Registered Professional 
Forester(RPF) from ARC, and Cambria Community Services District (CCSD) Board Director and Cambria 
Forest Committee liaison Harry Farmer. 

Crosby begins the meeting by recommending, for the convenience of the item presenters, we immediately go to 
Agenda item 6.1: Update on Planned Fire Prevention and Forest Health Projects.  Spencer Gordon initiates the 
discussion by providing a slide presentation titled, “North Coast San Luis Obispo Regional Ecological Strategy 
for Improving Landscapes (SLO-RESIL).  He begins by stating the project location, beginning with the 
southern boundary of Monterey County, therefore the northern boundary of San Luis Obispo County, extending 
southward to Toro Creek in the Cayucos area, and bordered in the east by the Coastal Zone jurisdiction. The 
area encompasses roughly 88,000 acres.  Excluded are projects already permitted such as the Covell Ranch. the 
Cambria Pines Ecological Preserve/Rancho Marino, and the Pico Creek/San Simeon Point Hearst properties.  
Spencer then named the California Vegetative Treatment Program (Cal VTP) Treatment Types: Ecological 
Restoration, Fuel Break’s, and Wild land Urban Interface (WUI), as well as Treatment Activities: Prescribed 
burning (broadcast and pile burns), Mechanical vegetation removal ( masticator and chipper), Manual 
vegetation removal (hand crews with chain saws and chipper) and Prescribed herbivory.  Mostly the focus is on 
Ecological Restoration versus shaded fuels breaks as preferred by the California Coastal Commission (CCC).   

Neil Havlik then spoke to the number of fuel breaks on the map which seemed to include roads and highways.  
Mr Auten confirmed Neil’s observation, plus responding to an inquiry by Julie, saying that planning and 
prioritization is a main focus, including understory preservation, adding that roadside mowing could at times be 
utilized. Laura then inquired, " how much mastication will be used on these projects”, plus expressing concern 
as to tree thinning that can lead to an increase in poison oak and invasives such as French broom.  Spencer then 
spoke to Laura’s concern, saying that there is “great value to shaded fuel breaks’, and they would be 
implemented as often as possible to discourage the spread of less desirable vegetation.  As for  mastication, this 
would be used as needed, including removing plants such as poison oak, plus doing selective thinning.  He 
added there is basically, ”a mixed bag of opportunities” to accomplish what needs getting done.  Mr Auten 
acknowledged Laura’s concerns, suggesting to her that they watch the recovery process together.  He spoke to 
the expertise of Fire Safe SLO as to treatment of invasives,  

Spencer then spoke to various Treatment Specifications, such as the size of trees removed as well as the number 
removed per acre, the retention of habitat trees and snags, and downed and dead trees for wildlife health.  When 
he addressed removing tree limbs, Crosby expressed his concern regarding “limbing up”, especially on oak 
trees.  Spencer replied that training crews to use discretion in this area has been utilized in the past and would 
continue to be part of the process moving forward.  Mr Auten observed that “maintaining habitat continuity” 
continues to be a focus, and supervision of work being done is a given.  Spencer also spoke to the spacing of 
shrub canopy's, as well as chipped biomass, including “broadcasting chips in a mosaic pattern”.  Laura again 
expressed concern she had in two specific areas, the potentially extensive “limbing up of trees”, and the 
cleaning of tools to prevent the spread of disease.  Neil then interjected that, "removing up to 33% of a tree's 
crown was too high a number”.  Steve stated the percentage used to be 50%, and “professional discretion” is the 

374



9E 
most useful guideline in this area.  He also reflected back to a discussion he and Neil had many years ago as to 
the importance of tree limbing, and that Neil’s concerns and observations at that time had not been forgotten.  
Pretty impressive!  Spencer added the effort to retain the “complexity” of the forest would be important, and 
“we do not want to make it look park like”.  Julie voiced her concern as to the removal of tree canopy’s and the 
affect on open space below.  Spencer said there needed to be a balance as to the openness of the forest floor 
allowing for seedlings of Monterey pines to sprout, versus using the canopy for cover.  He added that, "shrubs 
continuously bounce back", including “vigorous resprouting", and he’d seen this happen many times, including 
at Rancho Marino.  Mr Auten then spoke at some length addressing Julie’s apprehension in this area, concluding 
with the work being done in this area is, “not without extensive thought”.  He suggested looking into the book, 
“Tending the Wild” as to how best interact with nature, including the “state of the climate”.   

Spencer then described the RCD’s interaction with United States Fish and Wildlife (USFW) as well as 
California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW), including "addressing the long list of standard 
requirements in the monitoring and reporting program”.  He spoke to interaction with (indigenous) tribes, 
providing archeological survey reports, animal and plants surveys, and so forth. He added the Coastal 
Commission was interested in overseeing RCD’s reporting and monitoring techniques.  He added that 
community sight visits would continue to be available and were encouraged.  Finally he provided a Timeline as 
to when public involvement would be available, times meetings would take place in the months ahead regarding 
US-LT RCD as well as the CCC, with implementation of the Strawberry Canyon combined efforts with 
Greenspace, as well as a private property project off Cambria Pines Road, hopefully starting before September 
1st.   He also spoke to the necessity of working with the various regulatory agencies that oversee the projects 
they pursue.  He also added, “we’re up against the wall with the current grant that we have”, and that they’d be 
endeavoring to accomplish as much as possible in the time available.  

Crosby then thanked Spencer for the detailed presentation just provided.  However, he expressed his concern as 
to the size and scope of the Project Specific Analysis (PSA) being described, and it's therefore possible any 
additional project would have little oversight due to the magnitude of this wide ranging effort.  Mr Auten then 
remarked that any future project within this geographic area would still require a variety of surveys and reports 
that would need to be made available to the various agencies, including the possibility of an amendment 
process.  He then expressed anxiety regarding the long term forest health of the areas under consideration, and 
that, “we’re killing ourselves economically, each time we go to do a new project it’s hundreds of thousands of 
dollars”, that there’s a need to cut costs and be more efficient in the future.  Crosby then expressed his 
appreciation for the knowledgeability and caring of the folks the Forest Committee is currently interacting with, 
but what happens if this changes in the future.  Steve acknowledged Crosby’s concerns, adding that thankfully 
the various agencies and regulations would always exist to oversee projects taking place.  Laura then expressed 
her appreciation for the sensitivity being expressed at the meeting, but wonders what will happen once, “we’ve 
gone in and disturbed everything, letting more invasives back in and changed the forest, what happens then?”   
Steve stated the concern of himself and others in this area, stating, “you can’t live on grants forever”, and that 
"people, entities and agencies need to start budgeting for resilience”, and this is now being done more and more.  
He added property owners need to make their effort in this area, “especially around homes”,  Laura again 
expressed her anxiety around invasive species such as poison oak, hemlock, thistles, stating that the change in 
climate and human (in)activity seems to be encouraging more troubling circumstances.  Spencer then said he 
shared her fear in this area, and how important it is to utilize, “early detection and rapid response” in removing 
harmful invasive species.  Crosby voiced the importance of caring for and maintaining the forest in a cost 
efficient manner, with which Mr Auten totally concurred.  Steve also spoke to the balancing act as to what trees 

375



9E 
and vegetation need to be saved versus what will need to be let go, and there are times we wind up “losing 
whole habitat communities”. 

At this point Harry Farmer brought up the concern he has regarding the increasing amount of thistle, and that in 
the 38 years of living in Cambria he has never witnessed as much thistle in our community, while very little 
effort appears to be taking place to address the problem.   Mr Auten said that while he shared this concern, he 
has ultimately adopted the five stages of grief regarding thistle; denial, anger, bargaining, depression, and 
acceptance.  He also remarked that songbirds love thistle, at least the eating of the seeds whether in Spring or 
Fall, to which Harry replied, “if songbirds are happy, things can’t be all that bad”.   Laura then brought up the 
problem of cape ivy, that if you cut it you spread it, so what’s the plan to eradicate it?  Spencer replied, “That’s a 
tough one”.  He then related various efforts he’s witnessed in removing cape ivy, from cutting it back, digging it 
up, to using herbicides, none of which has ever been successful, adding, “I don’t know what we can do about 
cape ivy, to be completely honest with you.”  Neil Havlik then related an effort he’d heard about, where shovels 
and mattocks, perhaps even heavy equipment were used, in getting it up by the roots with some success.  Steve 
said he would follow up on this.  After some brief comments of appreciation, this portion of the meeting ended, 
and Steve Auten and Spencer Gordon left the meeting. 

We then returned to the regularly scheduled Agenda, starting with the Treasurer’s Report.  Laura informed us 
that in her last report the Forest had $1310.31 in the bank.  Since then donations have been received for the 2nd 
edition of the Invasive Weed Guide, some from sales at the Friends of the Fiscalini Ranch shop on Main St, plus 
from Chris Fox from CambriaCA, the online paper. Various other sources also provided some revenue from the 
Weed Guide and elsewhere, with the total amount now being $1935.31.    

Next on the Agenda are the Organizational Reports.  Neil from CNPS said he had nothing to report regarding 
Cambria.  And while Crosby noted no one was here to represent the Cambria Fire Safe Focus Group, there is a 
document the CFSFG is working on titled the Cambria Wildfire Preparedness Plan, being prepared by Cal Poly 
Professor and Registered Professional Forester Chris Dicus and some of his students which should be quite 
beneficial for our community.  Kitty Connolly, Executive Director of Friends of the Fiscalini Ranch Preserve, 
was not present to provide a report.  Yet it should be noted that Sunday, May 25th, from 5-7PM, at Robin’s 
Restaurant, FFRP will acknowledge many of the folks who, in one manner or another, helped prevent the Ranch 
from being developed back in the 1990’s, saving what is known as the, "Jewel of the Central Coast”.  
Approximately 90 folks will be in attendance.  Donni Morgan updated us on Greenspace happenings, starting 
with the Earth Day event at the Creekside Reserve on Sunday, April 27th.  Roughly 240 folks showed up on a 
very nice day, and it was, “a real festive event”.  The highly regarded Greenspace Speaker Series continues on 
Sunday, May 18th, at 3PM, at the Unitarian Universalist Fellowship Church on Arlington St, with Dr Lloyd 
Moffett speaking on “The Spirituality of Place”.  He is a Religious Studies professor at Cal Poly described as 
“an enormously dynamic speaker”.   The major fundraising event of the year is the Adventure Auction taking 
place on Saturday, May 31st, from 5-9PM at the Jocelyn Center, with the meal being catered by Robin’s 
Restaurant.  There will also be a Volunteer Appreciation Day event taking place at the Creekside Reserve 
featuring a luncheon on Sunday, June 22nd.  Keith Seydel then reported, “there’s nothing really new at the 
Rancho”, referring to Rancho Marino.  He said the next pile burning, which was quite successful earlier this 
year, will hopefully be taking place in October or November.  Crosby thanked Keith for his new involvement 
with FFRP, now being on their Board of Directors, and the opportunity for him to share some of his 
environmental experiences with US-LTRCD on Rancho Marino with the projects on the horizon on the Ranch.  
Crosby then referenced the Land Conservancy of San Luis Obispo County, and that Executive Director Dan 

376



9E 
Turner of the County Fire Safe Council had recently talked about what kind of treatment programs would be 
appropriate in the Fern Canyon Preserve here in Cambria, and that the Land Conservancy has a Conservation 
Easement on those properties.  Neil Havlik then mentioned that the Fern Canyon area was basically cut in half 
by Highway One, and that the Canyon was one of the most diverse habitat locations in all of Cambria, 
essentially, “a very specialized area that needs to be looked at very carefully” before possibly harmful measures 
may be taking place.  Neil said the Native Plant Society had once produced a brochure about the plants in the 
Cambria pine forest, and he would try to locate it.  Laura then reminded us that Fern Canyon is one of the 
wettest and greenest areas in all of Cambria, and it “doesn’t look like a park”, and we don’t want it to look that 
way. 

Crosby then mentioned that the CCSD’s Weed Abatement Ordinance had been discussed at Thursday’s Fire 
Protection meeting, and that the Standing Committee was still tending to the details in this area.  He added that 
the Ordinance actually has no useful information as to what a homeowner is meant to be doing, and the 
Committee was developing guidelines to pursue.  At this point CCSD liaisonHarry Farmer thanked Crosby and 
Laura for their dedication to overseeing the forested areas in Cambria, and their ongoing work with the Forest 
Committee. 

At this point Crosby adjourned the meeting at 11:31AM. 

The next meeting of the Cambria Forest Committee will be on Friday, June 13th at 10AM via Zoom. 

This summary written and submitted by CCSD Director and CFC liaison Harry Farmer. 

 

377



9E 
North Coast Advisory Council May 21, 2025 Meeting Summary 

The meeting was called to order by Chair Christina Galloway at 6:00PM.  The item was immediately addressed 
to approve Jennifer Lawson as the San Simeon representative to the NCAC.  After brief comments by Ms 
Lawson, Brian Glusovich made the motion to approve, with a second by Brandy Cole.  Council approval was 
unanimous. 

Chair Galloway then requested a motion to approve the minutes from the April 16th NCAC meeting, as well as 
today’s Agenda.  Motion to approve was made by Brandy Cole and seconded by Brian Glusovich.  Approval 
was unanimous. 

There was no Public Comment. 

Chair Galloway then read a Written Report provided by Commander Darren Gennuso of the Templeton 
Highway Patrol regarding the Big Rig Truck traffic filled with very large rocks often seen and heard driving 
through downtown Cambria on Main St of which members of the public have expressed concern.  It appears 
these trucks are coming from the quarry on Santa Rosa Creek Road, and there are currently no regulations or 
codes preventing them from doing so.  Commander Gennuso intends to investigate this issue further and report 
back next month. 

Commander Hank Abbas from the SLO County Sheriff’s Office briefly reviewed his written report on calls for 
the month of April, followed by a description of an Ordinance approved on Tuesday, May 20th by the County 
Board of Supervisors addressing the use of fireworks on private property during the 4th of July period, with the 
holiday itself falling on a Friday.  The Department will augment their patrolling with an “all hands on deck’ 
approach, with additional patrols in the Avila Beach, Los Osos, Cayucos and Cambria areas.   The Ordinance 
applies mainly to the use of fireworks on private property, designating who would be the responsible party, 
especially regarding minors.  The main concern is what actions would pose a public safety risk.  The Ordinance 
can be viewed on the Board of Supervisors web page for that meeting under item 2. 

District 2 Supervisor Bruce Gibson then provided an update on the major items addressed at yesterday’s Board 
of Supervisors meeting regarding the Cambria area, staring with storm damage repair that has taken place in 
recent years.  The problem on Pineknolls Drive was finally addressed for which the County was reimbursed.  
Repair to damage from storms in 2023-early 2024 on Santa Rosa Creek Road is about two thirds done.  He 
related reimbursement for most of the roughly $68 million spent by the County from Federal and State funds 
appears to be slightly problematic at this time, fortunately the County has sufficient reserves to fall back on until 
then.  Examining the upcoming yearly Budget began at the Board meeting yesterday, with the formal hearing to 
begin Monday, June 9th.  And while three days is allowed, it can take less than one day.  Yet Bruce said this 
year might be “particularly tough” considering complications with State and Federal financing.  Also 
problematic is that while revenue is going up, expenses are going up faster, so while various departments will 
have greater revenue, they will still need to trim back.  Therefore, roughly 168 positions will need eliminated 
Countywide from the almost 3,000 employee workforce.  Yet various circumstances may allow, "the true 
number of layoffs one can count on two hands.”  Mr Gibson said in the 19 budgets he’s worked on since being 
on the Board this is the “most challenging”, with the “biggest amount of cutting we’ve even had to do”, 
especially as "looking into the future this problem will continue to persist”.  He then went on in slight detail as 
to how difficult it will be to distribute monies to the multitude of programs within the County, with Public 
Safety being the top priority.  "This year, almost all the increase in revenue will be going to the Sheriff, the Fire 
Department, and the District Attorney.”  He then referenced the difficulty in funding areas such as parks, 

378



9E 
libraries, enhanced health care, and so forth.  In addition, a balanced budget needs to be approved by the end of 
June, with the Fiscal Year beginning July 1st.  Kermit Johansson then asked Supervisor Gibson about the repairs 
needed on Santa Rosa Creek Road, to which the reply was, due to various engineering complications, probably 
summer 2026.  Also, it appears “keeping the creek from impinging upon the road” is the biggest challenge.  
Chair Galloway then inquired as to the obligation of the County to provide services to various areas under its 
jurisdiction, to which Supervisor Gibson provided a brief but substantial answer as to mandatory services, 
options in sharing services, plus funding for programs the State demands the counties do.  Ultimately 
Supervisor Gibson stated, “we’d like to do a lot more, but the funding is just not there”.  He then continued,  
“the county of San Luis Obispo is in excellent financial shape, we have a very high bond rating” with solid 
reserves, yet various "revenue enhancements” are on the horizon to address  needed improvements that 
ultimately have to go before the voters for approval. 

At this point Supervisor Gibson’s very competent assistant Blake Fixler began a presentation on a SLO County 
Public Works Overview for the NCAC area, especially Cambria.  He first provided a slide show featuring the 27 
different departments/service groups within the County with 2,969 employees.  The Public Works department 
has roughly 300 workers that service three different groups of which Transportation is one that divides into 
Roads, Development Services, and Design and Construction.  Development Services oversee permits when they 
go out for review to examine how a project will affect roads such as curbs, gutters, drainage and sidewalks.  The 
main role of the Transportation Division are Pavement management and Storm Response(getting trees out of the 
road, clearing ditches, etc,).  He provided statistics on County maintained roads, followed by a chart featuring a 
Pavement Condition Index, and the Cambria Road Treatment Plan.  As for addressing roadway improvement 
needs, micro surfacing costs about $115,000 per mile, while asphalt cost roughly $500,000 per mile.  Also 
shown is a chart for Cambria that indicates asphalt projects for summer 2026, and micro surfacing for fall 2027.  
Projects will be broken down into neighborhoods to be most efficient.  For further information you can contact 
Blake at Bruce Gibson’s office:  bfixler@co.slo.ca.us / (805)781-4338 or Public Works at 
publicworks@co.slo.ca.us / (805)781-5252. 

Kermit Johansson then inquired regarding roadwork and walkways in Cambria, especially the need for wider 
shoulders for pedestrians, and where would one inquire on this.  Blake stated the Public Works Transportation 
Division would deal with this.  Supervisor Gibson then interjected that seeking funding for widening roadways 
would require going out of the County, and funds for projects such as this are quite scarce.  He added that while 
public safety is a top priority, widening roadways is rare. 

The video of Blake’s presentation is available on the Presentation page of the NCAC web site:  ncacslo.org 

The next speaker was John DiNunzio from the San Luis Obispo Council of Governments (SLOCOG), who is in 
the Programming and Project Delivery Division.  They work with Cal Trans and Public Works on a daily basis.  
This evening he presented the 2025 Regional Road Safety Action Plan.  He began by referencing statistics such 
as 800 crashes in the Count per year, one every 12 hours, of which 30 lose their lives, and 160 suffer major life 
altering injuries.  In SLOCOG’s Road to Zero program, the goal is to reach zero fatalities and serious injuries by 
2050.  Road users are of course automobile drivers, motorcyclists, and pedestrians and bicyclists.  The main 
causes of accidents in 2024 were illegal turning (27%), DUI/Distracted Driving (25%), Roadway Departures 
(14%) and speeding (13%).  Many more statistics and pertinent information was provided, including that this 
Plan is funded by a Federal Grant, and no State or local monies were used.  The vision of the Plan is to prioritize 
safety on the roadways.  Mr DiNunzio then highlighted the "30 for 30 Program”, reducing crashes from 2023 to 
2030 by 30%, and Tools for Road Safety.  He also acknowledged our own Kermit Johansson as a “Road Safety 

379

mailto:bfixler@co.slo.ca.us
mailto:publicworks@co.slo.ca.us


9E 
Champion” for his ongoing efforts in this area.  He also spoke to various recent Field Walks throughout the 
County, including one here in Cambria this past February attended by roughly 30 local residents, done in 
conjunction with the California Department of Public Safety and Cal Poly Department of Engineering.  He also 
said that on Thursday, September 25th, from 5:00-8:30 PM there will be the SLO Safe Streets Forum at the SLO 
Veteran’s Hall, 801 Grand Ave.  The theme will be, “Impaired Driving in Rural Areas”. 

Finally, he spoke to something specific to Cambria, a grant  SLOCOG has submitted to CalTrans titled, “The 
North Coast Highway Resiliency and Safety Plan”.  He’s hoping to hear back from CalTrans this summer on 
this opportunity. 

Next on the Agenda was the report from David Pierson, Chair of the Fire Safe Focus Group.  Their meeting 
took place this afternoon.  One of the highlights regarding Cambria was a presentation by Cal Poly professor 
Marc Horney describing a program with his students where they will do drone overheads to look at vegetation 
underneath the trees and map it all, mainly to tell how dry the vegetation is getting.  David said he inquired with 
Professor Horney as to how much it would cost the FSFG to run his program in Cambria once every two weeks 
to a month in the Fall to see how badly our forest and vegetation had dried out to perhaps better monitor fire 
risk than we can at this time.  David was happy to report our area will be getting another helicopter for fire 
fighting flying out of Paso Robles, allowing for more coverage for Cambria and our more rural areas. 

After determining a quorum would still be available, at this point a five minute break was taken. 

Next on the Agenda was a discussion of four Land Use referrals.  

The first was a rather elaborate landscape construction project at 2825 Burton Dr,  featuring an outdoor food 
prep/bar/dining area, fire pit, fountain, sauna and hot tub, and a Bocce Ball court.  No trees are up for removal.  
The home owner Sandra Michaels then spoke to their love of Cambria and the natural environment, and 
wanting to spend as much time outdoors as possible.   An overthought discussion took place that included useful 
and productive feedback from County Planning representative Dane Mueller.  A motion to approve the project 
was made by Brian Glusovich, with a second by Jennifer Lawson.  Recommendation for approval from the 
NCAC was unanimous. 

Next on the list was application for a Minor Use permit at 1770 Hudson.  The request is for modification of 
existing decks and new site improvements at a two story single family residence.  A variety of other additions 
are in the plans, but no changes to the existing home are intended.  Essentially the home has a lot of decking.  
Four trees were removed by the previous owner before the home was purchased.  Brian Glusovich, who was 
involved in the on site inspection, says that many of the improvements are for safety reasons due previous 
shoddy workmanship.  After thoughtful discussion a motion to approve was made by Kermit Johansson, with a 
second by Brandy Cole.  Approval was unanimous. 

The third application was for a remodel of an existing home at 1770 Londonderry Lane at the corner of Arliss.  
At first the question was posed as to why a minor use coastal development permit was even required for this 
project.  Mr Mueller stated this property is in a County Special Neighborhood designation, perhaps because the 
home is visible from Highway One, where any development requires a minor use permit.  A number of changes 
are planned, including installation of an indoor elevator.  A short discussion took place, including feedback from 
a representative from the architectural firm.  There will be no tree removal.  A motion to approve was once 
again made by Kermit J, with a second by Brandy C.  Council approval was unanimous. 

 

380



9E 
The forth application was for a minor use coastal development permit at 5890 Coventry Lane.  It’s an existing 
two bedroom, two bath home, wanting to redo an understory area into a guest suite  with bathroom of 480 
square feet.  It is a licensed vacation rental. Brian Glusovich expressed his concern that as a vacation rental 
increasing in size one would anticipate increased water use.  Chair Galloway voiced her concern on the 
expanding size of vacation rentals, especially additional bedrooms and bathrooms, and at some point this should 
be a community discussion.  She also stated, regarding this particular project, that designated Visitor Parking be 
created by the applicant because it’s a narrow road, even though the residence already has the required off street 
parking.  After lengthy discussion a motion to approve was made by Kermit J under condition additional 
parking be factored in, with a second by Brandy C.  Council vote was 4-1, with Mr Glusovich dissenting.  Chair 
Galloway added that at some point the increasing size and number of vacation rentals in our community that 
exist as a business needs to be addressed.  Kermit added his thoughts on this as well. 

Finally we arrive at a report from the Cambria Community Services District.  General Manager Matt McElhenie 
filled in for new CCSD NCAC liaison Director Harry Farmer  Regarding recent Board action, the 3rd quarter 
budget was recently addressed.  The District is in the process of acquiring an EV charging station funded by the 
County Air Pollution Control District as we shift our fleet into being “a little more green in the District”.  Along 
this line, the District is in the process of acquiring an Electric Tractor, a major upgrade from our long time back 
hoe diesel tractor.  He added the new tractor will include acquiring a $290,000 voucher, meaning the cost to the 
District, and therefore the ratepayers, will be approximately $109,000 for a $400,000 EV Tractor, "with the goal 
of continuing to upgrade our infrastructure in terms of green energy”.  The Strategic Plan was also updated in 
terms of progress reports.   

As for the General Manager’s Report, he addressed the District’s Open Space Lot Weed Abatement Process.  
Both the County Fire Safe Council and the Cambria Fire Safe Focus Group acquired a grant to allow the 
District to hire former fire fighter and local long time tree service provider Tim Radecki.  He has already begun 
to weed abate CCSD owned lots which is therefore all grant covered.  According to GM McElhenie, incredible 
progress is already being made, and several community members have provided positive feedback in this area.  
Also, the District has recently been awarded the “District of Distinction Award” from the California Special 
Districts Association.  The award acknowledges Special District Leadership Governance, including Board and 
staff involvement meeting certain benchmarks in a variety of areas.  We are one of only 47 out of roughly 2000 
Special Districts in the State to have received this award. 

As Fire Chief Michael Burkey had needed to leave the meeting earlier, Chair Galloway asked GM McElhenie to 
provide an update on the Fire Department Hazard Mitigation Plan.  He responds by stating that in the past 
Cambria had its own separate Mitigation Plan along with the Local Health Care District to address natural 
disasters such as fire, flood, tsunamis, earthquakes, drought, and so forth.  Yet what has happened is that the 
CCSD has joined the entire County to create a multi jurisdictional forward thinking plan that identifies risk 
factors in each of the communities as to where they will be impacted the most.  As for Cambria, the wastewater 
plant is in a tsunami zone, we’ve had flooding in various areas including downtown, Rodeo Grounds has been 
flooded numerous times, Santa Rosa Creek has overflowed.  On May 29th, from 6-7:30,  there will be a 
workshop on the Hazard Mitigation Plan at the Veterans Hall to see how the plan will form.  In addition, on 
Monday the 20th GM McElhenie oversaw an open house which included roughly 30 liaisons strategically 
located throughout the community  that were given specific informational packets, essentially the first phase of 
working at the neighborhood community level to address potential hazardous events.  Mr McElhenie described 
the event as a “very heartwarming process!”. 

381



9E 
He also provided a brief report on the trip he and Fire Chief Burkey took to Mill Valley to experience one of 
their practice Evacuation Drills that provided a lot of insight into how this process is done.  The Fire Staff from 
Mill Valley offered to come down to Cambria to provide assistance and feedback and evaluate our Fire 
Department and community involvement when we finally do our own practice Evacuation Drill.   

As General Manager McElhenie ended his report, Chair Galloway thanked him for the direction he and his staff 
were taking the District and the community regarding Hazard event preparedness.  

There was no report from the Cambria Community Health Care District. 

Karen Christman had nothing to report on Outreach. 

At this point a discussion took place, mainly between Chair Galloway and secretary Christman, as to the 
function of the Land Use Committee, and  how much were their efforts really needed.  Brian Glusovich then 
voiced his opinion as to whether a Land Use Committee is really required, witnessing what happened at this 
evening’s meeting when fairly thorough discussion took place among Council members in discussing the 
various Land Use referrals. Ms Christman spoke to the value of the Committee, especially as they visit the 
various sites to be discussed and voted upon. 

Kermit Johansson voiced his support for the need of the Land Use Committee.  Brian added that historically 
Land Use has been the most important Committee the NCAC has had.  

At this point it was 8:34, and Chair Galloway endeavored to adjourn the meeting.  However, further discussion 
the took place as to the need for the Land Use Committee, with the meeting finally officially adjourned at 8:37!! 

The next NCAC meting will take place on Wednesday, June 18th at 6:00 PM via Zoom.  

This summary written and submitted by CCSD Director and NCAC liaison Harry Farmer. 

 

382




